
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Agenda 
 

Thursday, 11 July 2013 
2.00 pm, Committee Room 1 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact:  Kalyan DasGupta (Tel: 020 8314 8378) 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2013 

 
1 - 7 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

8 - 11 

3.   Disabled Children's Charter 
 

12 - 41 

4.   CCG Commissioning Strategy update 
 

42 - 48 

5.   Health Protection Committee 
 

49 - 56 

6.   Update on recruitment of additional member from the voluntary sector 
 

 

7.   Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 
 

57 - 63 

Public Document Pack



 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Members 
 
 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Thursday, 11 July 2013.   
 
Barry Quirk, Chief Executive 
Wednesday, 3 July 2013 
 
  

Councillor Chris Best Community Services, London Borough of 
Lewisham 

Aileen Buckton Directorate for Community Services, 
London Borough of Lewisham 

Mayor Sir Steve Bullock London Borough of Lewisham 

Elizabeth Butler Lewisham Healthcare NHS Trust 

Tony Nickson Voluntary Action Lewisham 

Dr Simon Parton Lewisham Local Medical Committee 

Dr Danny Ruta Public Health, London Borough of 
Lewisham 

Elaine Sammarco Lewisham HealthWatch 

Frankie Sulke Directorate for Children and Young People 

Dr Helen Tattersfield Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group 

  



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD 
Thursday, 30 May 2013 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT:  Sir Steve Bullock (Chair),Councillor Chris Best, Aileen Buckton, Tony 
Nickson, Danny Ruta, Elaine Sammarco, Frankie Sulke and Helen Tattersfield 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Kalyan DasGupta, Joy Ellery (Lewisham Healthcare NHS Trust), Ed 
Knowles, Susanna Masters (Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group), Katrina 
McCormick (Public Health Lewisham), Sarah Wainer and Martin Wilkinson (Lewisham 
CCG)  
 
Apologies for absence were received from   
 
 
1. Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

 
Sarah welcomed everyone to the first meeting of Lewisham’s statutory Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 
 
Attendees introduced themselves. The Board welcomed Elaine Sammarco and 
congratulated her on her appointment as the representative of Healthwatch to the 
HWB. 
 
As the first order of business, the Board was requested to ratify the appointment of 
the Chair and to nominate and approve a Vice Chair. 
 
It was explained that, in line with the Council’s Constitution, the Board would be 
chaired by the Mayor, Sir Steve Bullock. 
 
Councillor Best moved to approve the formal appointment of the Mayor as Chair of 
the HWB and nominated Dr Helen Tattersfield as Vice Chair. 
 
Cllr Best’s recommendations were agreed. 
 
RESOLVED that, for the municipal year 2013-14, 
 
(i)   the Mayor, Sir Steve Bullock, be confirmed as Chair of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and 
 
(ii)  Dr Helen Tattersfield be confirmed as Vice Chair of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 
For the benefit of the Board, the Chair explained the considerations governing any 
declarations of interest. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

Page 1



 

 

 

2 

A packet containing forms for new members to complete, relating to various 
declarations and undertakings, was also distributed to all the members. 
 
 

3. Comments of the Healthier Communities Select Committee on the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
Sarah Wainer informed the Board of the comments and views of 
the Healthier Communities Select Committee on the development of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, which it considered at its meeting on the 16 April 2013. 
 
The Committee recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board specifically 
address the issue of engagement with service users, through either 
 
(i)   appointments to the Health and Wellbeing Board or 
(ii)  a second tier of user groups feeding directly into the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 
 
The Mayor noted the report and remarked that the current membership of the 
Board would likely grow in the course of the meeting. 
 
It was noted that the issues raised within this referral would be covered as part of 
agenda items on the Terms of Reference and supporting structures. 
 
RESOLVED That the report be received and the Board respond. 
 
 

4. Terms of Reference and Membership 
 
Ed Knowles introduced the report and summarised the key features of the Board’s 
Terms of Reference (ToR), including the criteria for membership, as well as 
procedures for it to follow as a committee of the Council. 
 
The report proposed additional members to join the Health and Wellbeing Board 
and included the Council’s proposals for membership and voting 
rights for consideration by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Ed explained that the scope of the HWB’s ToR expressed the difference between 
the current Board and its predecessor, the Shadow HWB, in that the HWB needs 
to operate as a committee of the Council, whereas the shadow board had not 
operated as one. 
 
Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board were invited to: 
 

• note the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Terms of Reference, the 
Council’s procedure rules, and the particular provisions which 
apply to the Health and Wellbeing Board;  

• note the means by which membership of the Board may be 
amended or changed; 

• consider the Council’s proposals on membership and which 
members will have voting rights; and 

• decide whether there are any other organisations or individuals 

Page 2



 

 

 

3 

who ought to be included in the membership of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board agreed with the Council’s proposals regarding 
membership and voting rights and with the particular provisions that apply to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The Constitution establishes an expectation that the Council will appoint two 
members to the Board, representing Voluntary and Community organisations. 
Accordingly the Board invited Tony Nickson, Director of Voluntary Action 
Lewisham to join the Board. The Board also asked Tony to develop a process to 
identify another representative of the sector.  Tony and this additional 
representative will then be appointed to the Board by the Council. 
 
The Chair noted that NHS England had expressed interest in applying for 
membership of the Board, with the understanding that it would be for the Board to 
decide the applicant’s status and role, should membership be granted. 
 
The Chair notes that a number of organisations have expressed interest in the 
work of the Board and how best to be involved.  In discussion, it was noted that 
the sub-groups of the Health and Wellbeing Board would provide a number of 
opportunities whereby different organisations might be able to contribute their 
skills and expertise   
 
In view of the above discussion, the Board 
 
RESOLVED  
 
(i)  letters will be sent to the Lewisham Local Medical Committee and the 
Lewisham Healthcare NHS Trust inviting them to nominate a representative to be 
a member of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
(ii) that the proposal to accept an NHS England representative to the HWB be 
accepted, and that the delegated position be accorded a non-voting role. 
 
(iii)  that Tony Nickson will develop a process to help the Board select an  
additional representative from the voluntary and community sector. 
 
(iv) that the agreement of the Board with proposals regarding membership and 
voting rights be reported to Council along with a recommendation that Tony 
Nickson be appointed as one of the two representatives of the Voluntary and 
Community Sector, 
 
The Board agreed that the HWB will meet every eight (8) weeks, with a large 
recess in the summer. 
 

5. Health and Wellbeing Board - supporting groups 
 
Ed Knowles introduced the report detailing information on the supporting groups 
that will complement the Board and support the delivery of its strategic intentions. 
 

Page 3



 

 

 

4 

The Board was invited to note each proposed supporting group and its relationship 
with the HWB, as well as its relationship with the HWB’s agenda going forward. In 
particular, Ed highlighted the multi-agency range and depth of the collective 
resources involved, drawing special attention in this regard to the map of the 
architecture included in the papers. 
 
It was stressed that the map’s indicated groups by no means exhaust the groups 
or issues relevant or available to the HWB: the map is merely a useful working 
model for the Board to start its work with. 
 
The discussion highlighted the following points: 
 

• The Engagement Group will need to address the HCSC’s requirement for 
engagement (please see Item 3, above) by adapting the CCG’s existing Public 
Engagement Group for broader application.  

•  In order to avoid duplication of resources, clear relationships should be 
established with other relevant boards already monitoring HWB outcomes, e.g. 
the Joint Commissioning Group which monitors issues such as obesity, 
smoking and sexual health for children and young people. 

 
The report was noted. 
 
 

6. Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
Sarah Wainer, with Danny Ruta,  presented the Board with a draft of Lewisham’s 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, highlighting the key actions that need to be 
populated and published. 
 
The draft strategy is based upon the information and the areas of need identified 
through Lewisham’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 
 
The report outlined the statutory requirements associated with Health and 
Wellbeing strategies, the process through which Lewisham’s strategy and 
its key areas of focus have been developed, and the extensive 
engagement activity that has been undertaken with residents and 
stakeholders to ensure that the strategy reflects the experiences and 
needs of local people. The report also set out the next steps that will be taken to 
ensure the strategy fully aligns with the Government’s vision for person-centred 
coordinated care and support and that partners’ planned activity underpins the 
health and wellbeing priorities.  
 
Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board were invited to: 
 

• note the key principles of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, its key aims and 
the nine areas of focus as proposed by the Shadow Health and Wellbeing 
Board; 

• note the engagement activity that has taken place, the messages arising from 
this activity and how this information has been incorporated into the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy; 

• agree the arrangements by which progress towards achieving Lewisham’s 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be monitored and reported upon; and 

Page 4



 

 

 

5 

• agree the remaining activity that will take place to finalise the strategy. 
 
The discussion highlighted the following points: 
 

• The Key Actions should be high-level actions leading to a more detailed, 1-year 
Action Plan, to be presented to a near-future Board and subsequently 
monitored, including for costs. 

• Given the crucial importance of joined-up working, all the priorities should be 
approached in the context of the Integrated Care Model. 

 
In light of the report, recommendations, and discussion, the Board 
 
RESOLVED  that a 1-year Action Plan showing high-level  HWB-APG 
actions for implementing Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing  
Strategy be presented to the Board before year’s end.  
 

7. Update on the TSA 
 
Joy Ellery presented the update following the Secretary of State’s decision to 
proceed with the closure of Lewisham Hospital’s Accident and Emergency 
department and to merge that hospital with Queen Elizabeth Hospital in 
Greenwich. 
 
It was pointed out that Lewisham Healthcare Trust (LHT) had already expressed 
an interest in becoming a Foundation Trust before the Trust Special Administrator 
T(SA)’s report on Lewisham Hospital/LHT was published. 
 
The following points were highlighted: 
 

• The TSA’s report targets the A&E department in the main. 

• The likely outcome is integration between the Lewisham and Queen Elizabeth 
hospitals. 

• The Trust has instigated—and is keen to promote—a “Business as Usual” 
campaign, and has kept “extremely busy” throughout this period of transition. 

• Staff feel very much at risk; at the same time, preparations need to progress 
towards creating a safe new organisation. 

 
The discussion highlighted the following points: 
 

• The impending integration is not expected to affect the commissioning role of 
the CCG in any fundamental way, although it would be important to maximise 
people’s access to local services. In general, however, CCG-related business 
can be expected to continue as  before. 

• Also, the same smooth transition is expected in the case of Community 
Services. 

 
The report was noted. 
 
 

8. Integrated Care and Support - to consider the way forward for adult health 
and social care services 
 

Page 5



 

 

 

6 

Susanna Masters presented the report summarising the recent national guidance 
on Integrated Care (May 2013) and asked the Board to agree that further work be 
undertaken on an integrated service delivery model for adult social care and health 
across the borough. 
 
Members were invited to 
 
(i)  agree that further joint work be undertaken to explore the feasibility 
and benefits of an integrated service delivery model for adult health 
and social care services across Lewisham; and 
(ii)  agree that an Expression of Interest be submitted on behalf of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board to become an Integrated Pioneer site 
by 28 June 2013. 
 
The discussion highlighted the following points: 
 

• It is important for the Board to keep in mind that there is no funding attached to 
its becoming an Integrated Pioneer Site. 

• Demand will soon outstrip resources. 

• Attempts to address issues and problems in isolation from the broader issues 
and available resources are unlikely to succeed. In this respect, the Feasibility 
studies are crucial guides. 

• While the Council has made considerable savings already, efficiencies can still 
be gained from Integration. However, all other possible means of gaining 
efficiencies through savings will now need to be considered, and “Pioneer” 
status will offer  greater flexibility for these purposes. 

• Some money from Public Health could also be contributed towards Integration. 
 
In light of the above discussion, the Board 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
(i)  further joint work be undertaken to explore the feasibility 
and benefits of an integrated service delivery model for adult health 
and social care services across Lewisham; and 
(ii)  an Expression of Interest be submitted on behalf of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board to become an Integrated Pioneer site 
by 28 June 2013. 
(iii) the 11 July board will submit a proposal regarding ways in which Public Health 
money could contribute to the Primary Prevention agenda in Lewisham. 
 
 

9. Health and Wellbeing Board work programme 
 
Sarah Wainer presented the Board with a draft work programme for discussion 
and approval. 
 
Members of the HWB were invited to 
 
(i)   note the current draft of the work programme and consider whether changes 
or additions were necessary; 
(ii)  approve the work programme; and 

Page 6



 

 

 

7 

(iii) agree that the work programme would be considered as a standing item at 
each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Following input from various members, the work programme, as updated, was 
agreed. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the work programme would be considered as a standing  HWB 
item at each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
 

Page 7



 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on 
the agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s 
Member Code of Conduct:-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for 

profit or gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 

than by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for 
inclusion in the register in respect of expenses incurred by you in 
carrying out duties as a member or towards your election expenses 
(including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which 

they are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in 
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council 
for goods, services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, 

the Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant 
person* is a partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in 
the securities of which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Report Title 
 

Declarations of interest 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive – London Borough of 
Lewisham 

Item No. 2 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date:  11 July 2013 

Agenda Item 2

Page 8



(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or 
land in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
1/100 of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 

the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which 
the relevant person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to 
register the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to 

which you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes, or whose principal purposes include the 
influence of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality 

with an estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or 
would be likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend 
or close associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in 
the local area generally, but which is not required to be registered in 
the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and 

they are present at a meeting at which that matter is to be 
discussed, they must declare the nature of the interest at the 
earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is 
considered. The declaration will be recorded in the minutes of 
the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest the 
member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 

Page 9



declare such an interest which has not already been 
entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or 
participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of 
a disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the 
nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity 
and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may 
stay in the room, participate in consideration of the matter and 
vote on it unless paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of 
a disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider 
whether a reasonable member of the public in possession of the 
facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would 
be likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. 
If so, the member must withdraw and take no part in 
consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the outcome 
improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing 

of a member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect those in the local area generally, then the 
provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal 
apply as if it were a registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the 

member’s personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they 
may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member 
to risk of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has 
agreed that such interest need not be registered. Members with such 
an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek advice from 
the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to 
participate in decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise 
prevent them doing so. These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless 

the matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to 
arrears exception) 

Page 10



(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a 
school governor unless the matter relates particularly to the 
school your child attends or of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 
 

Page 11



  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide a summary of the key points in the Disabled 

Children’s Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards and to recommend that the Health and 
Wellbeing board agree to sign up to the Charter, delegating responsibility as appropriate to 
the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board (CYPSPB). The Disabled 
Children’s Charter is provided in appendix 1. 

 
1.2 This paper considers the key commitments within the Charter, the actions that need to be 

addressed to deliver on the commitments in Lewisham, and progress already made. 
 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The original Local Authority Every Disabled Child Maters (EDCM) Charter was launched in 

2008 and renewed in 2011. Since then 99 local authorities (over half of all local authorities 
in England) including Lewisham, have signed up to the Charter and recent years saw a 
move towards PCTs and local authorities signing up to the Charter together. This was 
recognised as a powerful display of joined up working for disabled children's services.  

 
2.2 In April 2013, the Charter was replaced with the Disabled Children's Charter for Health and 

Wellbeing Boards. The Disabled Children’s Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards was 
developed by EDCM and Tadworth to support Health and Wellbeing Boards meet their 
responsibilities towards children and young people who have disabilities, special 
educational needs (SEN), health conditions, and their families.  

 
2.3 EDCM is asking all Health and Wellbeing Boards to sign up to the Charter, demonstrating a 

commitment to improve the quality of life and outcomes experienced by disabled children. 
Health and Wellbeing Boards who sign the Charter will agree to meet its seven 
commitments focusing on improving health outcomes for disabled children, young people 
and their families, and to provide evidence after one year on how they have met each one. 

 
 
3. The Disabled Children’s Charter 
 
3.1 The Charter has seven key commitments that Health and Wellbeing Boards will sign up to: 
 

• We have detailed and accurate information on the disabled children and young 
people living in our area, and provide public information on how we plan to meet their 
needs. 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Report Title 
 

Disabled Children’s Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards 

Contributors 
 

Catherine Bunten, Commissioning 
Manager, Performance and Strategy, 
Directorate for Children & Young People, 
LBL 

Item No. 4 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date:11 July 2013  

Agenda Item 3

Page 12



  

• We engage directly with disabled children and young people and their participation 
is embedded in the work of our Health and Wellbeing Board.  

• We engage directly with parent carers of disabled children and young people and 
their participation is embedded in the work of our Health and Wellbeing Board.  

• We set clear strategic outcomes for our partners to meet in relation to disabled 
children, young people and their families, monitor progress towards achieving them 
and hold each other to account. 

• We promote early intervention and support for smooth transitions between children 
and adult services for disabled children and young people 

• We work with key partners to strengthen integration between health, social are and 
education services, and with services provided by wider partners.  

• We provide cohesive governance and leadership across the disabled children and 
young people’s agenda by linking effectively with key partners. 

 
3.2 A full list of the commitments, including statutory drivers together with information and 

resources on how to meet them needed is provided in appendix 2. 
 
3.3 A draft implementation plan has been produced, provided in appendix 3, which will support 

the Health and Wellbeing Board to be transparent about timescales and plans for delivering 
each commitment and enables parents and disabled young people to hold us to account. 

 
 
4. Why sign the Disabled Children’s Charter 
 
4.1 Benefits to Health and Wellbeing Boards of signing the Charter and meeting its 

commitments include: 
• Publicly articulate a vision for improving the quality of life and outcomes for disabled 

children, young people and their families 
• Understand the true needs of disabled children, young people and their families in your 

local area and how to meet them 
• Have greater confidence in targeting integrated commissioning on the needs of 

disabled children, young people and their families 
• Support a local focus on cost-effective and child-centred interventions to deliver long-

term impacts 
• Build on local partnerships to deliver improvements to the quality of life and outcomes 

for disabled children, young people and their families 
• Develop a shared local focus on measuring and improving the outcomes experienced 

by disabled children, young people and their families 
• Demonstrate how your area will deliver the shared ambitions of the health system set 

out by the Government in ‘Better Health Outcomes For Children and Young People: 
Our Pledge’ for a key group of children and young people 

 
 
5. Local and National Context  
 
5.1 Whilst the Charter itself makes specific reference to the Health and Wellbeing Board, 

Lewisham recognises that many of these commitments will be met though the work of 
the CYPSPB. 

 
5.2 There are a number of local and national policies and agendas that align with the 

commitments in the Charter, and mean that Lewisham can be confident that all 
commitments will be evidenced within 12 months. These are summarised below, along 
with a draft implementation plan provided in appendix 3. 

 
5.3 On 4th February 2013 the Government introduced the Children and Families Bill to 

Parliament including clauses which reform the system of support for children with 
special educational needs.  

 

Page 13



  

5.4 As a Pathfinder Authority, Lewisham is already working with Health partners to develop 
the main elements of the Bill for children with special educational needs and disabilities, 
and to ensure that children with SEN and/or disabilities and their families are at the 
heart of the assessment and planning process and the services they receive. It has also 
provided Lewisham Council with an opportunity to develop a single joined up, integrated 
approach to assess and respond to children and young people’s needs across 
education, health and social care. Key elements of the Pathfinder programme, and Bill 
are: 

 
• Replacing Special Educational Needs (SEN) statements and Learning Disability 

Assessments (for 16-25 year olds) with a single, simpler 0-25 assessment process and 
Education, Health and Care Plan from 2014; 

• Providing statutory protections comparable to those currently associated with a 
statement of SEN to up to 25 in further education; 

• Requiring that local authorities and health services jointly plan and commission 
services that children, young people and their families need;  

• Developing a ‘local offer’ to provide clear information to children and young people, and 
parents and carers about the services available; and 

• Giving parents or young people the right to a personal budget for their support. 
 
5.5 Lewisham’s fourth Children and Young People’s Plan 2012-2015 (CYPP) sets out the 

strategic aims and priorities for improving outcomes for all children across the Children and 
Young People’s Strategic Partnership. Each of the outcomes and actions outlined in the 
plan are underpinned by a detailed analysis of need which informs the steps we are taking 
to improve outcomes for children and young people. Meeting the needs of children with 
complex needs and disabilities is a key priority in the CYP Plan, and the CYPSPB jointly 
monitors progress against our targets and holds each other to account. 

 
5.6 In 2011, the Children and Young People’s Directorate implemented the first phase of the 

Children with Complex Needs review, bringing together services for children with disabilities 
and health needs, and SEN, under one service manager. In 2013/14, phase two of this 
review – our ‘New Direction’ will be implemented. The Children with Complex Needs 
Service would like to use this opportunity to build on this work to create a more joined up, 
integrated approach for all services that work with children and young people with SEN and 
disabilities.  

 
 
6. Recommendations 

 
6.1 The HWB is recommended to: 

• agree to sign the Disabled Children’s Charter; 
• delegate the production and sign off of the implementation plan to the CYPSPB. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 14



  

Appendix 3: Draft implementation plan 

 
Commitment Evidence Required Action Deadline Owner Evidence produced 

We have detailed and 
accurate information on 
the disabled children and 
young people living in our 
area, and provide public 
information on how we plan 
to meet their needs. 
 

• The full range of sources of information 
collected on disabled children, young 
people and their families which will be 
used to inform the JSNA process  

 
• The quality assurance process used to 
ensure that information and data on 
disabled children, young people and 
their families used to inform 
commissioning is sufficiently detailed 
and accurate  

 
• The way in which the JSNA will be used 
to assess the needs of local disabled 
children, young people and their 
families 

 
• The way in which information on any 
hard to reach groups is sourced, and 
action taken to address any gaps of 
information with regard to local disabled 
children, young people and their 
families  

 
• The way in which disabled children, 
young people and their families are 
strategically involved in identifying need, 
and evidence and feedback on their 
experiences is used to inform the JSNA 
process  

 
• Public information on how the HWB will 
support partners to commission 
appropriately to meet the needs of local 
disabled children, young people and 
their families  

 
 

Resource (via Invest) in Children 
with Complex Needs service to 
collate and QA all information on 
disabled children , young people 
and their families in Lewisham, 
including information sourced 
from disabled children and 
young people and their families 
directly and production of the 
disabled children’s register. 
 
Review of CYPSPB and HWB 
published information to ensure 
public information meets 
requirements. 
 

April 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LBL, 
Children with 
Complex 
Needs 
Service & 
Public Health 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Disabled Children’s 
Register 

• JSNA 
• CYPP- needs analysis and 
priorities 

• HWB Commissioning 
Needs Analyses 

 

P
age 15



  

Commitment Evidence Required Action Deadline Owner Evidence produced 

We engage directly with 
disabled children and 
young people and their 
participation is embedded 
in the work of our Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  
 

• Evidence of the way in which the HWB 
or its sub groups have worked with 
disabled children and young people in 
the JSNA process, and next steps for 
JSNA engagement 

 
• Evidence of the way in which the HWB 
or its sub groups have worked with 
disabled children and young people in 
the preparation and delivery of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS), 
and next steps for JHWS engagement 

 
• Evidence of partnership working with 
any local groups of disabled children 
and young people 

 

To document the engagement 
processes used in the 
production of the CYPP, and 
JSNA. 
 
Second phase of the Children 
with Complex Needs review, 
and participation in the SEND 
pathfinder will look in more 
depth at our engagement with 
disabled children and young 
people, including: 
 
• Development of existing 
strategies for CYP 
involvement in their care plans 

• Disabled CYP involvement in 
Healthwatch and production of 
the JHWS 

 

October 
2013 

CYPSPB/ 
HWB 
 

Clear examples of 
engagement with disabled 
children and young people in 
JSNA, strategies, and 
service delivery. 

We engage directly with 
parent carers of disabled 
children and young people 
and their participation is 
embedded in the work of 
our Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  
 

• Evidence of the way in which the HWB 
or its sub groups have worked with 
parent carers of disabled children in the 
JSNA process, and next steps for JSNA 
engagement 

 
• Evidence of the way in which the HWB 
or its sub groups have worked with 
parent carers of disabled children in the 
preparation and delivery of the JHWS, 
and next steps for JHWS engagement 

 
• Evidence of partnership working with 
local parent groups, including the local 
Parent Carer Forum(s) 

To document the engagement 
processes used in the 
production of the CYPP, and 
JSNA. 
 
Second phase of the Children 
with Complex Needs review, 
and participation in the SEND 
pathfinder will look in more 
depth at our engagement with 
families, and will work with the 
HWB to ensure that parent 
carers involvement is embedded 
in our work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 2014 CYPSPB – 
resourced in 
LBL, 
Children with 
Complex 
Needs 
Service 
 

Clear examples of 
engagement with families, 
including the Parents’ Forum 
in JSNA, strategies, and 
service delivery. 

P
age 16



  

Commitment Evidence Required Action Deadline Owner Evidence produced 

We set clear strategic 
outcomes for our partners 
to meet in relation to 
disabled children, young 
people and their families, 
monitor progress towards 
achieving them and hold 
each other to account. 
 

• Public information on the status of 
outcomes for local disabled children and 
young people based on indicators such 
as the NHS Outcomes Framework, the 
Public Health Outcomes Framework, 
etc.  

 
• Public information on the strategic 
direction the HWB has set to support 
key partners to improve outcomes for 
disabled children and young people. 
This may be encompassed by the 
JHWS, but would need to be sufficiently 
delineated to demonstrate specific 
objectives and action for disabled 
children and young people.  

 
 
 

MET: 
CYPP 2012-2015 provides 
strategic leadership and 
priorities across the disabled 
children and young people’s 
agenda, based on needs 
analysis as provided in the 
JSNA – CYPP is aligned with 
the JHWS. 
 
Progress against targets and 
performance indicators is 
monitored by the CYPSPB and 
subgroups. 
 
Review of CYPP by end of 
September 2013. 
 

Ongoing  
 
Review of 
CYPP by 
September 
2013 

CYPSPB Publication of the 2013 
CYPP Review 

We promote early 
intervention and support 
for smooth transitions 
between children and adult 
services for disabled 
children and young people 
 

• The way in which the activities of the 
HWB help local partners to understand 
the value of early intervention 

 
• The way in which the activities of the 
HWB ensure integration between 
children and adult services, and 
prioritise ensuring a positive experience 
of transition for disabled young people 

MET: 
Early Intervention is a 
fundamental approach across all 
partners working with, and for 
children and young people in 
Lewisham. This is continually 
reinforced to local partners 
through our partnerships, with 
value measured through impact. 
 
Transition is a key element of 
the SEND pathfinder, and our 
programme will improve and 
prioritise work to ensure that 
transitions is a focus from the 
point of referral, and in all 
reviews – ensuring that children, 
young people and their families 
have an improved, and positive 
experience of transition. 
 

April 2014 CYPSPB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SEND 
Programme 
Board 

Agendas & papers of 
partnerships. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Improved experience for 
families measured through 
feedback and outcomes. 
 
EHC plan pathway for 
transition to adult services 

P
age 17



  

Commitment Evidence Required Action Deadline Owner Evidence produced 

We work with key partners 
to strengthen integration 
between health, social are 
and education services, 
and with services provided 
by wider partners.  
 

• Details of the way in which the HWB is 
informed by those with expertise in 
education, and children’s health and 
social care 

 
• Details of the way the HWB engages 
with wider partners such as housing, 
transport, safeguarding and the youth 
justice system 

 
• Details of steps taken to encourage 
integrated working between health, 
social care, education and wider 
partners in order to improve the 
services accessed by disabled children, 
young people and their families. 

 

Participation in the SEND 
pathfinder to: 
• Embed the EHC plan aligning 
assessment and planning for 
children with disabilities and 
SEN across Health, Education 
and Social Care by September 
2013 

• Development of Local Offer  
 

April 2014 HWB 
 
SEND 
programme 
board 

• HWB terms of reference, 
including interfaces with 
other partnerships and 
wider partners. 

• Local Offer  
• Education, Health and 
Care Plan – procedures 
and protocols  

• Short Breaks Service 

We provide cohesive 
governance and 
leadership across the 
disabled children and 
young people’s agenda by 
linking effectively with key 
partners. 
 

• Information on links to other local 
integration forums which set strategic 
direction for disabled children’s 
services, e.g. the local children’s trust 
arrangements, the local safeguarding 
board, the learning disability partnership 
board, the school forum, etc. 

 
• Evidence of how the JSNA and JHWS 
is aligned with other arrangements, 
such as: reviewing and commissioning 
of SEN services via the High Needs 
Block; safeguarding arrangements; child 
poverty strategies, etc. 

 

MET: 
Clear governance arrangements 
across Lewisham’s partnerships 
are in place. 
 
CYPP 2012-2015 provides 
strategic leadership and 
priorities across the disabled 
children and young people’s 
agenda, based on needs 
analysis as provided in the 
JSNA – CYPP is aligned with 
the JHWS. 
 
SEND Pathfinder Programme 
Board provides governance and 
direction in meeting the 
requirements of the Children 
and Families Bill. 

Ongoing  HWB/CYPP  

 

P
age 18



!"#$%&'($)"*$+&%,-.*/$0"&./1*(2%$0",1)*1$341$5*,.)"$

,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/%7

!"4$,1*$8*$),.9&('$,-4:)7$

!"#$ %&'()*#+$ ,"&*+-#./'$ ,"(-0#-$ 12-$ 3#(*0"$ (.+$ 4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ (.+$ 0"&'$ (77289(.:&.5$

+27;8#.0$ "(<#$ )##.$ +#<#*29#+$ 02$ ';992-0$ 3#(*0"$ (.+$4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ =346'>$8##0$ 0"#$

.##+'$ 21$ (**$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ ?"2$ "(<#$ +&'()&*&0&#'@$ '9#7&(*$ #+;7(0&2.(*$ .##+'$

=ABC>@$"#(*0"$72.+&0&2.'@$(.+$0"#&-$ 1(8&*&#'D$E.$0"&'$+27;8#.0@$?"#.$?#$0(*F$()2;0$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?#$(-#$-#1#--&.5$02$(**$0"#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"&'$5-2;9D$

6*(*;)%$)4$5*,.)"$,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/%$43$%&'(&('$)"*$0",1)*1$

,(/$<**)&('$&)%$=4<<&)<*()%>

G$H;)*&7*:$(-0&7;*(0#$($<&'&2.$12-$&89-2<&.5$0"#$I;(*&0:$21$*&1#$(.+$2;0728#'$12-$

+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

G$J.+#-'0(.+$0"#$0-;#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'$&.$:2;-$*27(*$(-#($(.+$"2?$02$8##0$0"#8

G$3(<#$5-#(0#-$72.K+#.7#$&.$0(-5#0&.5$&.0#5-(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5$2.$0"#$.##+'$

21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$A;992-0$($*27(*$127;'$2.$72'0L#11#70&<#$(.+$7"&*+L7#.0-#+$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$02$

+#*&<#-$*2.5L0#-8$&89(70'

G$6;&*+$2.$*27(*$9(-0.#-'"&9'$02$+#*&<#-$&89-2<#8#.0'$02$0"#$I;(*&0:$21$*&1#$(.+$

2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

G$%#<#*29$($'"(-#+$*27(*$127;'$2.$8#(';-&.5$(.+$&89-2<&.5$0"#$2;0728#'$

#M9#-&#.7#+$):$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ %#82.'0-(0#$"2?$:2;-$(-#($?&**$+#*&<#-$0"#$'"(-#+$(8)&0&2.'$21$0"#$"#(*0"$

':'0#8$'#0$2;0$):$0"#$N2<#-.8#.0$&.$O6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-$,"&*+-#.$

(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$H*#+5#/$12-$($F#:$5-2;9$21$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#T

T$ %#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$
H*#+5#

Page 19



Commitment 1: We have detailed and accurate information 

on the disabled children, young people and their families 

living in our area, and provide public information on how we 

plan to meet their needs 

!"#$%&'()$" 

!"#$I;(*&0:$21$+(0($(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$;'#+$02$;.+#-9&.$0"#$9*(..&.5@$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-:$

21$'#-<&7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$<#-:$7289*#M$.##+'$&'$210#.$922-D$!"#$+&1K7;*0:$

21$+#<#*29&.5$(77;-(0#@$-2);'0$+(0($&.$($'0(.+(-+$12-8(0$()2;0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#$ &'$ (.$#.+;-&.5$ &'';#$ 12-$ *27(*$ (-#('$(.+$ 12-$.(0&2.(*$ (5#.7&#'D$X#*&()*#$9#-12-8(.7#$

&.12-8(0&2.$ ()2;0$ 0"#$ ;'#$ (.+$ <(*;#$ 21$ '#-<&7#'$ &'$ 7-&0&7(*$ 02$ 7288&''&2.&.5$ +#7&'&2.'D$ !"#$

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$&+#.0&K#+$0"#$*(7F$21$(77;-(0#$+(0($('$0"#$

'&.5*#$)&55#'0$7"(**#.5#$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$?&0"$*2.5L0#-8$

"#(*0"$72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0&#'$(.+$*&1#$*&8&0&.5$72.+&0&2.'UDT

E.$Y(-7"$UVTU@$0"#$,Z,$-#*#('#+$($-#92-0$#.0&0*#+$O3#(*0"7(-#$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#/WDU!"&'$ -#92-0$ 5(<#$ +#0(&*'$ 21$ 9-&8(-:$ 7(-#$ 0-;'0$ =H,!>$ -#9*&#'$ 02$ ($ '#*1$ (''#''8#.0$

I;#'0&2..(&-#$2.$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.D 

H,!'$+#82.'0-(0#+$(.$#M0-#8#*:$?2--:&.5$*(7F$21$(?(-#.#''$21$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.S$

?$@&A*$B0C%$7*(&8#+$0"(0$(4$/&%,-.*/$="&./1*($,(/$#4:('$D*4D.*$.&A*/$&($)"*&1$,1*,

?$@&3)#$;A*$H,!'$/&/$(4)$<4(&)41$8"*)"*1$%*1A&=*%$,..4=,)*/$,%$,$1*%:.)$43$04<<4($

E%%*%%<*()$@1,<*8419$8*1*$/*.&A*1*/

?$F&G)#$)"1**$H,!'$/&/(2)$9(48$"48$<,(#$="&./1*($8*1*$1*3*11*/$341$<,(:,.$

8"**.=",&1%$(.+$(&(*$%,&/$="&./1*($8*1*$8,&)&('$4A*1$HI$8**9%$341$8"**.=",&1%

?$@&3)**($H,!'$'(&+$0"#:$/&/(2)$D14A&/*$%"41)$-1*,9%$%*1A&=*%

%;#$02$0"#$*(7F$21$-#*&()*#$+(0($2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$0"#&-$'0-(0#5&7$&.<2*<#8#.0$

(.+$0"(0$21$0"#&-$9(-#.0'$&'$#''#.0&(*$02$5(&.$($522+$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$0"#$9-2K*#$21$0"&'$5-2;9

U$ ,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$X#92-0$21$0"#$*2.5$0#-8$
72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0:$(.+$9(**&(0&<#$7(-#$';)5-2;9$9DU
W$ ,(-#$Z;(*&0:$,288&''&2.$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"7(-#$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$9-#9(-#$(''#''8#.0$21$.##+'$=[AC\>$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(-#($(.+$

"(<#$-#5(-+$02$5;&+(.7#$1-28$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#

Page 20



(.+$0"#$9(-0&7;*(-$7"(**#.5#'$(.+$#M9#-&#.7#'$0"#:$1(7#D$!"#&-$<&#?'$-#8(&.$;.+#--#9-#'#.0#+$

&.$';-<#:'$(.+$9;)*&7$(.+$9(0&#.0$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$0"#$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#D$

7++()"8.9++/:

P.#$21$0"#$9-&8(-:$022*'$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$"(<#$02$+-&<#$'0-(0#5&7$7288&''&2.&.5$&.$

0"#&-$(-#('$&'$0"#$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0$=[AC\>D$!"#$[AC\$?&**$(''#''$0"#$7;--#.0$(.+$

1;0;-#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$.##+'$(.+$(''#0'$21$($*27(*$929;*(0&2.$(.+$?&**$;.+#-9&.$($[2&.0$3#(*0"$

(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5:$=[34A>D$E0$?&**$&.0#-9-#0$(<(&*()*#$+(0($02$+#<#*29$(.$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$

0"#$7(;'#'$21$"#(*0"$&.#I;(*&0&#'$(.+$($.(--(0&<#$21$0"#$#<&+#.7#D

!"#$[AC\$7(.$2.*:$)#$(.$#11#70&<#$022*$ 12-$#<&+#.7#L)('#+$+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$ &1$ &0$ &'$)('#+$2.$

(77;-(0#$(.+$8#(.&.51;*$+(0(D$!"#$)2+&#'$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$+#*#5(0#$72**#70&.5$+(0($

02$('$9(-0$21$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$8;'0$127;'$2.$&89-2<&.5$0"#$I;(*&0:$(.+$'729#$21$&.12-8(0&2.$

2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?"&7"$0"#:$;'#@$&.7*;+&.5S$(<(&*()*#$.(0&2.(*$+(0($'#0']$

*27(*$ &.12-8(0&2.$ '2;-7#'$ ';7"$ ('$ +(0($ 1-28$ ,2882.$ \''#''8#.0$ Q-(8#?2-F']$ I;(*&0(0&<#$

&.12-8(0&2.$1-28$+&-#70$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$'#-<&7#$;'#-'D$

!"#$ [AC\$ 9-27#''$ 8;'0$ +#<#*29$ (.$ ;.+#-'0(.+&.5$ 21$ 0"#$ *27(*$ 929;*(0&2.$ ?"&7"$ &'$

';1K7&#.0*:$ +&11#-#.0&(0#+$ 02$ ;.+#-'0(.+$ 0"#$ .##+'$ 21$ (**$ 5-2;9'$ 21$ 7"&*+-#.@$ 9(-0&7;*(-*:$

0"2'#$ ?"2$ 1(7#$ 0"#$ 5-#(0#'0$ &.#I;(*&0&#'$ 2-$ #M9#-&#.7#$ 8;*0&9*#$ +&'(+<(.0(5#'D$

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ !"#$1;**$-(.5#$21$'2;-7#'$21$&.12-8(0&2.$72**#70#+$2.$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$
9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$?"&7"$?&**$)#$;'#+$02$&.12-8$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''

G$ !"#$I;(*&0:$('';-(.7#$9-27#''$;'#+$02$#.';-#$0"(0$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$+(0($2.$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$;'#+$02$&.12-8$7288&''&2.&.5$&'$
';1K7&#.0*:$+#0(&*#+$(.+$(77;-(0#

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$[AC\$?&**$)#$;'#+$02$(''#''$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$(.:$"(-+$02$-#(7"$5-2;9'$&'$'2;-7#+@$(.+$(70&2.$
0(F#.$02$(++-#''$(.:$5(9'$21$&.12-8(0&2.$?&0"$-#5(-+$02$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$
:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$(-#$
'0-(0#5&7(**:$&.<2*<#+$&.$&+#.0&1:&.5$.##+@$(.+$#<&+#.7#$(.+$1##+)(7F$2.$0"#&-$
#M9#-&#.7#'$&'$;'#+$02$&.12-8$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$"2?$0"#$346$?&**$';992-0$9(-0.#-'$02$7288&''&2.$
(99-29-&(0#*:$02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$
1(8&*&#'

Page 21



J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

A0(0;02-:$N;&+(.7#$2.$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$
4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'

A0(0;02-:$5;&+(.7#$02$';992-0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$(.+$0"#&-$9(-0.#-'$&.$
;.+#-'0(.+&.5$0"#$+;0&#'$(.+$92?#-'$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$
[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.@$P9#-(0&.5$9-&.7&9*#'$12-$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$(.+$
[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'

H(9#-$+#'&5.#+$02$';992-0$(-#('$02$+#<#*29$';77#''1;*$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0'$

(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5&#'D

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:S$';992-0$12-$7288&''&2.#-'

3#*9$02$K.+$0"#$-&5"0$022*'@$+(0($(.+$#<&+#.7#$02$-#<&#?@$9*(.$(.+$&89-2<#$'#-<&7#'$&.$

:2;-$*27(*$(-#(D

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:S$022*'$(.+$+(0(

,"&Y(0$9-2<&+#'$#(':$(77#''$02$($?#(*0"$21$+(0(@$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$&.0#**&5#.7#$0"-2;5"$($

-(.5#$21$2.*&.#$022*'$+#'&5.#+$02$';992-0$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$

X&5"07(-#$=UVTU>@$C3A$\0*('$21$^(-&(0&2.$&.$3#(*0"7(-#$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$\+;*0'

^(-&(0&2.'$(7-2''$0"#$)-#(+0"$21$7"&*+$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$9-2<&+#+$):$C3A$B.5*(.+$(-#$
9-#'#.0#+$025#0"#-$02$(**2?$7*&.&7&(.'@$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$'#-<&7#$;'#-'$02$&+#.0&1:$9-&2-&0:$

(-#('$12-$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#@$I;(*&0:$(.+$9-2+;70&<&0:D

_N\$=UVTT>@$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0S$%(0($E.<#.02-:

P11#-'$9-(70&7(*$"#*9$02$72;.7&*'@$7*&.&7(*$7288&''&2.&.5$5-2;9'$(.+$20"#-$8#8)#-'$21$

"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'D

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$Y(F&.5$+(0($(.+$
&.12-8(0&2.$?2-F$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#

Q(70'"##0$2.$8(F&.5$+(0($(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$?2-F$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$&.7*;+&.5$

-#'2;-7#'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'S$8(F&.5$0"#$7('#$02$0(-5#0$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$'#-<&7#'

6-&#K.5$12-$H(-#.0$,(-#-$Q2-;8'$2.$0"#$-#('2.'$?":$0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$)2(-+$&.$
0"#&-$(-#($'"2;*+$0(-5#0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#&-$[2&.0$A0-(0#5&7$C##+'$\''#''8#.0$=[AC\>$
(.+$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$'0-(0#5:$=[34A>D

Page 22



Commitment 2: We engage directly with disabled children and 

young people and their participation is embedded in the work 

of our Health and Wellbeing Board 

3#(*0"$ (.+$4#**)#&.5$ 62(-+'$ '"2;*+$ #.';-#$ 0"(0$ 0"#$ <2&7#$ 21$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$

9#29*#$&'$(*?(:'$"#(-+$?"#.$+#7&'&2.'$(-#$)#&.5$8(+#$0"(0$(11#70$0"#8D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+$8#8)#-'$'"2;*+$;'#$0"#&-$&.`;#.7#$02$#8)#+$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$

:2;.5$9#29*#$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$':'0#8$(.+$&.$0"#$72.0#M0$21$($72.0&.;2;'$(.+$

7;--#.0$9(-0.#-'"&9D

!"#$ )#.#K0'$ 21$ #8)#++&.5$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ 21$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ (-#$ ";5#S$

)#00#-$'#-<&7#'$?&**$)#$+#<#*29#+$+-&<#.$):$1##+)(7F$1-28$0"#$9#29*#$?"2$F.2?$(.+$;'#$0"#8]$

-#'2;-7#'$(-#$.20$?('0#+$2.$'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(-#$.20$0(F#.$;9$2-$<(*;#+]$'#-<&7#'$?&**$)#$82-#$

7"&*+$(.+$:2;.5$9#-'2.$1-&#.+*:$(.+$(77#''&)*#]$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&**$"(<#$

&.'&5"0$ &.02$ 0"#$ +&<#-'#$ .##+'$ (.+$ )(--&#-'$ 1(7#+$ ):$ 8(-5&.(*&'#+$ (.+$ <;*.#-()*#$ 5-2;9']$

&89-2<#+$ (772;.0()&*&0:$ 02$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ ('$ '0(F#"2*+#-']$ (.+$ +&-#70$ )#.#K0'$

02$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$0"#8'#*<#'$';7"$('$ &.7-#('#+$F.2?*#+5#$21$'#-<&7#'@$

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[AC\S$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

G$ 12-$,2;.0:$,2;.7&*'$a$#(7"$-#*#<(.0$%,$

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[34AS$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

E1)&=.*$IK$43$)"*$L(&)*/$M,)&4(%$04(A*()&4($4($)"*$N&'")%$43$)"*$0"&./$
OLM0N0P

G$ !"#$7"&*+$"('$0"#$-&5"0$02$#M9-#''$"&'$2-$"#-$29&.&2.$1-##*:$(.+$02$"(<#$0"(0$29&.&2.$
0(F#.$&.02$(772;.0$&.$(.:$8(00#-$2-$9-27#+;-#$(11#70&.5$0"#$7"&*+D$

E1)&=.*$Q$43$)"*$LM$04(A*()&4($4($)"*$N&'")%$43$B*1%4(%$8&)"$+&%,-&.&)&*%$
OLM0NB+P

G$ ,"&*+-#.$?&0"$+&'()&*&0&#'$"(<#$0"#$-&5"0$02$#M9-#''$0"#&-$<&#?'$1-##*:$2.$(**$8(00#-'$
(11#70&.5$0"#8@$0"#&-$<&#?'$)#&.5$5&<#.$+;#$?#&5"0$&.$(772-+(.7#$?&0"$0"#&-$(5#$(.+$
8(0;-&0:@$2.$(.$#I;(*$)('&'$?&0"$20"#-$7"&*+-#.@$(.+$02$)#$9-2<&+#+$?&0"$+&'()&*&0:$
(.+$(5#L(99-29-&(0#$(''&'0(.7#$02$-#(*&'#$0"(0$-&5"0D

Page 23



72.K+#.7#@$(.+$'F&**'bD

E0$'"2;*+$)#$ -#725.&'#+$ 0"(0$8(.:$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$8(:$ 1(7#$'&5.&K7(.0$

)(--&#-'$ 02$ 0"#&-$ &.<2*<#8#.0@$9(-0&7;*(-*:$ &.$8(&.'0-#(8$'#00&.5'D$X#7#.0$-#'#(-7"$ 1-28$0"#$

^EHBX$ 9-2c#70$ 12;.+$ 0"(0$ :2;.5$ +&'()*#+$ 9#29*#/'$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ &'$ '0&**$ .20$ #8)#++#+$ (0$ ($

'0-(0#5&7@$'#-<&7#$*#<#*$2-$&.+&<&+;(*$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$E0$12;.+$)(--&#-'$02$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&.7*;+&.5$

($*(7F$21$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$?"(0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&'$(.+$"2?$:2;$8(F#$&0$"(99#.@$*(7F$21$1;.+&.5@$

&.7*;'&<#$9-(70&7#@$-#'2;-7#'@$0&8#$(.+$0-(&.&.5@$(.+$*(7F$21$72.'&'0#.0$':'0#8'$(.+$'0-;70;-#'dDU

\**$ +&'()*#+$ 7"&*+-#.$ (.+$ :2;.5$ 9#29*#$ 7288;.&7(0#$ (.+$ "(<#$ ($ -&5"0$ 02$ "(<#$ 0"#&-$ <&#?'$

"#(-+$ (.+$ 0"&'$8(:$ -#I;&-#$ 0(-5#0#+$ (99-2(7"#'$ (.+$ 0"#$ &.<2*<#8#.0$ 21$ ^2*;.0(-:$ A#702-$

P-5(.&'(0&2.'$=^AP'>D$

b$ H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$7288&''&2.&.5@$9DfD

d$ ^EHBX$=^2&7#@$E.7*;'&2.@$H(-0&7&9(0&2.@$B892?#-8#.0$(.+$X#'#(-7">$=UVTW>@$3#(-$J'$P;0@$9DUW.

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[AC\$
#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$9-#9(-(0&2.$(.+$+#*&<#-:$21$0"#$[2&.0$3#(*0"$(.+$
4#**)#&.5$A0-(0#5:$=[34A>@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[34A$#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$9(-0.#-'"&9$?2-F&.5$?&0"$(.:$*27(*$5-2;9'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$
:2;.5$9#29*#

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!"#$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.@$X2:(*$,2**#5#$21$H(#+&(0-&7'$(.+$,"&*+$3#(*0"$(.+$P1K7#$12-$
H;)*&7$Y(.(5#8#.0$=UVTT>@$E.<2*<&.5$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'

!"&'$-#92-0$"&5"*&5"0'$0"#$F#:$K.+&.5'$(.+$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$1-28$(.$#<#.0$"#*+$&.$
A#90#8)#-$UVTT$02$+&'7;''$0"#$F#:$9-&2-&0&#'$12-$7"&*+$"#(*0"D$

^EHBX$=^2&7#DE.7*;'&2.DH(-0&7&9(0&2.DB892?#-8#.0DX#'#(-7">$

^EHBX$&'$($0"-##L:#(-$9-2c#70$1;.+#+$):$0"#$6&5$_200#-:$Q;.+@$02$-#'#(-7"$:2;.5$+&'()*#+$
9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&.$+#7&'&2.'$()2;0$'#-<&7#'D$E0$)#5(.$&.$A;88#-$UVTVD

^EHBX$=UVTU>@$!"#$^&9#-$9-2c#70S$?"(0$?#$12;.+

Q&.+&.5'$(.+$F#:$8#''(5#'$(-&'&.5$1-28$0"#$-#'#(-7"$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$^EHBX$9-2c#70D$$

^EHBX$=UVTU>@$!"#$^&9#-$9-2c#70S$?"(0$?#$12;.+$1-28$0"#$';-<#:

A;88(-:$21$0"#$K.+&.5'$(.+$F#:$8#''(5#'$1-28$0"#$-#'#(-7"$(70&<&0&#'D$!"#$-#'#(-7"$
';88(-&'#+$&.$0"&'$-#92-0$?('$7(--&#+$2;0$)#0?##.$UVTV$(.+$UVTUD$

Page 24



H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'

B.()*#'$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$02$#11#70&<#*:$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0"#$+#<#*298#.0@$
+#*&<#-:$(.+$#<(*;(0&2.$21$'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(11#70$0"#&-$*&<#'D$

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$&.<2*<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$
7288&''&2.&.5

\.$&.0-2+;70&2.$02$7288&''&2.&.5$1-28$($<(-&#0:$21$9#-'9#70&<#'D$E0$+#'7-&)#'$0"#$+&11#-#.0$
9(-0'$21$0"#$9-27#''$(.+$?(:'$02$';992-0$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$02$9(-0&7&9(0#$&.$(**$
('9#70'$21$7288&''&2.&.5D

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVVe>@$32?$02$);&*+$($7;*0;-#$21$9(-0&7&9(0&2.

E.12-8(0&2.$(.+$9-(70&7(*$&+#('$()2;0$"2?$02$#8)#+$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$0"-2;5"2;0$:2;-$
2-5(.&'(0&2.$&.$($?(:$0"(0$)-&.5'$()2;0$7"(.5#D

H(-0&7&9(0&2.$42-F'$=UVTV>@$_&'0#.$(.+$,"(.5#$L$($5;&+#$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$-&5"0'

\&8'$02$&.7-#('#$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$-&5"0'$(.+$
"2?$0"#:$7(.$)#$-#(*&'#+$&.$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(.+$0"&-+$'#702-$'#00&.5'D

Y(F&.5$P;-'#*<#'$3#(-+$=YP3>

YP3$&'$($.(0&2.(*$9-2c#70$02$#.';-#$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#./'$-&5"0$02$)#$"#(-+$)#728#'$($-#(*&0:D

,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVVg>@$Y(F&.5$P;-'#*<#'$3#(-+

6('#+$2.$($'#-&#'$21$#&5"0$'#8&.(-'$?&0"$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$0"&'$)22F$'#0'$2;0$0"#$7;--#.0$
92*&7:$72.0#M0$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9(-0&7&9(0&2.@$2;0*&.#'$0"#$)(--&#-'$
(.+$7"(**#.5#'$02$#11#70&<#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$"&5"*&5"0'$?"(0$&'$?2-F&.5$?#**D$

Q-(.F*&.@$\D$(.+$A*29#-@$HD$=UVVg>$A;992-0&.5$0"#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$
:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5

H-#'#.0'$-#'#(-7"$#M9*2-&.5$1(702-'$02$';992-0$522+$9-(70&7#$&.$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$+&'7;''#'$
92*&7:$(.+$9-(70&7#$&89*&7(0&2.'D

%1B'$=UVVW>@$6;&*+&.5$($7;*0;-#$21$9(-0&7&9(0&2.S$-#'#(-7"$-#92-0

Y(.:$21$0"#$7('#$'0;+&#'$&.$0"&'$-#'#(-7"$(-#$(00#890&.5$02$8(F#$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$82-#$
&.0#5-(*$02$0"#&-$2-5(.&'(0&2.D$

Page 25



04<<&)<*()$R>$!*$*(','*$/&1*=).#$8&)"$D,1*()$

=,1*1%$,(/$)"*&1$D,1)&=&D,)&4($&%$*<-*//*/$&($)"*$

8419$43$4:1$5*,.)"$,(/$!*..-*&('$64,1/

!"#$9;-92'#$21$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$&'$02$#.';-#$0"(0$9(-#.0'$7(.$&.`;#.7#$'#-<&7#$9*(..&.5$(.+$

+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$'2$0"(0$'#-<&7#'$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$1(8&*&#'$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.D$B11#70&<#$

9(-#.0$ 9(-0&7&9(0&2.$ "(99#.'$ ?"#.$ 9(-#.0'$ "(<#$ 72.<#-'(0&2.'$ ?&0"$ (.+$ ?2-F$ (*2.5'&+#$

9-21#''&2.(*'@$&.$2-+#-$02$+#'&5.@$+#<#*29$(.+$&89-2<#$'#-<&7#'fDTD

!"#$)#.#K0'$21$#11#70&<#$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(-#$?#**$#'0()*&'"#+S$-#'2;-7#'$(-#$.20$?('0#+$2.$

'#-<&7#'$0"(0$(-#$.20$0(F#.$;9$2-$<(*;#+]$9(-#.0$7(-#-'/$&.'&5"0$7(.$"#*9$+#<#*29$72'0L#11#70&<#$

'2*;0&2.'$02$*27(*$9-2)*#8']$($'"(-#+$<&#?$7(.$)#$+#<#*29#+$)#0?##.$9(-#.0'$(.+$9-21#''&2.(*'$

21$"2?$02$';992-0$1(8&*&#'$?&0"&.$1;.+&.5$*&8&0(0&2.']$82-#$72'0*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$7(.$)#$(<2&+#+$

&.$ 0"#$ 1;0;-#]$ (.+$ 7289*(&.0'$ 7(.$ )#$ -#+;7#+$ ):$ H(-#.0$ ,(-#-$ Q2-;8'$82.&02-&.5$ '#-<&7#'$

(.+$(*#-0&.5$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$8(.(5#-'$&1$9-2)*#8'$277;-D$!"#$,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$-#'2;-7#'$

)#*2?$72.0(&.$($?#(*0"$21$#<&+#.7#$(.+$7('#$'0;+&#'$&.02$"2?$#11#70&<#$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$"('$

)#.#K0#+$0"#$*27(*$(-#('$?"#-#$&0$"('$)##.$&89*#8#.0#+D

3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$#.';-#$0"(0$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$(-#$&.<2*<#+$&.$+#7&'&2.'$0"(0$

(11#70$0"#8$(0$($'0-(0#5&7$(.+$'#-<&7#$*#<#*D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$8#8)#-'$'"2;*+$

;'#$0"#&-$&.`;#.7#$02$#8)#+$#.5(5#8#.0$?&0"$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$

':'0#8$(.+$&.$0"#$72.0#M0$21$($72.0&.;2;'$(.+$7;--#.0$9(-0.#-'"&9D

E0$'"2;*+$)#$-#725.&'#+$0"(0$9(-#.0$7(-#-'$8(:$1(7#$'&5.&K7(.0$)(--&#-'$02$0"#&-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$

&.$8(&.'0-#(8$'#00&.5'$);0$0"(0$0"&'$'"2;*+$.20$9-#<#.0$0"#&-$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$+#7&'&2.L8(F&.5D$

f$ %#K.&0&2.$1-28$!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVTV>@$32?$02$5;&+#$02$9(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(L
0&2.S$A#70&2.$T$a$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$('$($9-27#''@$9DUD

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[AC\S$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

G$ 12-$,2;.0:$,2;.7&*'$a$#(7"$-#*#<(.0$%,$

%;0:$02$&.<2*<#$0"&-+$9(-0&#'$&.$9-#9(-(0&2.$21$0"#$[34AS$

G$ _27(*$3#(*0"?(07"$

G$ 9#29*#$*&<&.5$2-$?2-F&.5$&.$0"#$(-#($

Page 26



548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$
9(-#.0$7(-#-'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''@$(.+$.#M0$'0#9'$12-$[AC\$
#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$2-$&0'$';)$5-2;9'$"(<#$?2-F#+$?&0"$9(-#.0$
7(-#-'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$&.$0"#$9-#9(-(0&2.$(.+$+#*&<#-:$21$0"#$[34A@$(.+$.#M0$
'0#9'$12-$[34A$#.5(5#8#.0

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$9(-0.#-'"&9$?2-F&.5$?&0"$*27(*$9(-#.0$5-2;9'@$&.7*;+&.5$0"#$*27(*$H(-#.0$
,(-#-$Q2-;8='>

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=<UDV$UVTV>@$H(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.S$32?$02$5;&+#D$

\$5;&+#$02$';992-0$9(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8'@$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$8(.(5#-'$02$+#<#*29$9(-#.0$
7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.D$E0$7(.$)#$+2?.*2(+#+$&.$0"#$12**2?&.5$'#9(-(0#$'#70&2.'S$

A#70&2.$T$L$!"#$H-27#''

A#70&2.$U$L$9-2+;7&.5$&.12-8(0&2.

A#70&2.$W$L$72.';*0(0&2.

A#70&2.$d($L$';77#''1;*$8##0&.5'$!25#0"#-$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.

A#70&2.$d)$L$"2?$02$-#(7"$(.+$#.5(5#$9(-#.0'

A#70&2.$d7$L$';992-0&.5$9(-#.0$-#9-#'#.0(0&<#'

A#70&2.$f)L$12-$'0-(0#5&7$*#(+#-'

32?$9(-#.0$9(-0&7&9(0&2.$(.+$9(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8'$*#(+'$02$)#00#-$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$UVTT

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTU>@$H(-#.0$,(-#-$H(-0&7&9(0&2.S$\.$2<#-<&#?

!"&'$'"2-0$5;&+#$9-2<&+#'$#M(89*#'$21$';77#''1;*$9(-#.0$7(-#-$9(-0&7&9(0&2.

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:@$E89-2<&.5$3#(*0"$A#-<&7#'

X#'2;-7#'$02$';992-0$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$8(.(5#8#.0$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:@$X#'2;-7#'

X#'2;-7#'@$7('#$'0;+&#'$(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$12-$9-21#''&2.(*'$02$"#*9$0"#8$&89-2<#$"2?$
'#-<&7#'$(-#$+#*&<#-#+@$'2$0"#:$)#00#-$8##0$1(8&*&#'/$.##+'D

,2.0(70$\$Q(8&*:$=UVTW>@$H(-#.0$7(-#-$12-;8$&.<2*<#8#.0$&.$'"(9&.5$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$L$
'#72.+$-#92-0

X#92-0$&.02$H(-#.0$,(-#-$Q2-;8$&.<2*<#8#.0$?&0"$0"#$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#$&.$0"#$*#(+$;9$02$0"#$
.#?$"#(*0"$':'0#8$728&.5$&.02$#11#70D

Page 27



Commitment 4: We set clear strategic outcomes for our 

partners to meet in relation to disabled children, young 

people and their families, monitor progress towards achieving 

them and hold each other to account

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$9-#9(-#$($[34A$12-$8##0&.5$.##+'$&.7*;+#+$&.$[AC\$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$_\$(-#($(.+$
02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$5;&+(.7#$1-28$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$

H2?#-$21$0"#$346$02$5&<#$&0'$29&.&2.$02$0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$?"&7"$#'0()*&'"#+$&0$2.$
?"#0"#-$0"#$(;0"2-&0:$&'$+&'7"(-5&.5$&0'$+;0:$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$-#*#<(.0$[AC\$(.+$
[34A$

,,N$&'$;.+#-$($+;0:$02$&.<2*<#$346$&.$9-#9(-&.5$2-$'&5.&K7(.0*:$-#<&'&.5$0"#$
7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$a$&.7*;+&.5$72.';*0&.5$&0$2.$?"#0"#-$0"#$9*(.$"('$0(F#.$9-29#-$
(772;.0$21$0"#$-#*#<(.0$[34A$

%;0:$02$9-2<&+#$29&.&2.$2.$?"#0"#-$0"#$,,N$7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$"('$0(F#.$9-29#-$
(772;.0$21$0"#$[34AD$H2?#-$02$(*'2$?-&0#$02$C3A$B.5*(.+$=12-8#-*:$0"#$C3A$
,288&''&2.&.5$62(-+>$?&0"$0"(0$29&.&2.$2.$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$9*(.$=729:$8;'0$(*'2$)#$
';99*&#+$02$0"#$-#*#<(.0$,,N>D$%;0:$02$-#<&#?$"2?$1(-$0"#$,,N$"('$72.0-&);0#+$02$0"#$
+#*&<#-:$21$(.:$[34A$02$?"&7"$&0$?('$-#I;&-#+$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$(.+$02$72.';*0$346$2.$
0"&'$

%;0:$&.$72.+;70&.5$0"#$9#-12-8(.7#$(''#''8#.0@$02$(''#''$"2?$?#**$,,N$"('$
+&'7"(-5#+$+;0:$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$02$[AC\$(.+$[34A$(.+$02$72.';*0$346$2.$&0'$<&#?$2.$
,,N'/$72.0-&);0&2.$02$+#*&<#-:$21$(.:$[34A$02$?"&7"$&0$?('$-#I;&-#+$02$"(<#$-#5(-+$
=?"#.$72.+;70&.5$&0'$(..;(*$9#-12-8(.7#$(''#''8#.0$21$0"#$,,N>$

E.$ -#'92.'#$ 02$ 0"#$ -#92-0$ 21$ 0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$ Q2-;8@$ 0"#$

N2<#-.8#.0$'#0$2;0$&0'$(8)&0&2.'$12-$&89-2<&.5$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$

):$*(;.7"&.5$O6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-$,"&*+-#.$\.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$H*#+5#/hDT$3#(*0"$(.+$

4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?&**$9*(:$($F#:$-2*#$&.$+#*&<#-&.5$2.$0"#'#$(8)&0&2.'D$

%&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&**$9-2<&+#$($7-;7&(*$0#'0$21$0"#$#11#70&<#.#''$21$0"#$.#?$

"#(*0"$':'0#8$(.+$&89-2<&.5$0"#$2;0728#'$0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#@$&.7*;+&.5$0"2'#$&.$0"#$C3A$(.+$

H;)*&7$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$ 1-(8#?2-F'@$?&**$ -#I;&-#$72.7#-0#+$'0-(0#5&7$ *#(+#-'"&9D$32?#<#-@$ &1$

($3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$7(.$ &89-2<#$ &.0#5-(0&2.$12-$ *27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$

9#29*#@$?"2$1-#I;#.0*:$0#'0$0"#$&.0#-1(7#$)#0?##.$8;*0&9*#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$(5#.7&#'@$&0$7(.$+#*&<#-$

12-$(**$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Q2-$0"#$[AC\$(.+$[34A$9-27#''$02$8(F#$($92'&0&<#$&89(70$2.$0"#$2;0728#'$1(7#+$):$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'@$&0$&'$#''#.0&(*$0"(0$0"#$#<&+#.7#$72**#70#+$0"-2;5"$0"#$

[AC\$9-27#''$-#`#70'$0"#$2;0728#'$0"(0$(-#$82'0$8#(.&.51;*$02$0"#8D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+'$'"2;*+$;'#$0"#$[AC\$9-27#''$02$+#<#*29$($'"(-#+$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$21$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$

7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'@$(.+$0"#$7(;'#'$21$0"#$922-$2;0728#'$(.+$&.#I;(*&0&#'$

h$ %#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$12-$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#S$P;-$
H*#+5#

Page 28



0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#D$!"#:$'"2;*+$'#0$7*#(-$'0-(0#5&7$2;0728#'$12-$9(-0.#-'$02$8##0$(.+$#.';-#$0"(0$

8#7"(.&'8'$(-#$&.$9*(7#$02$8#(';-#$(.+$82.&02-$9-25-#''$02?(-+'$(7"&#<&.5$0"#8D

!"#$[34A$'"2;*+$(++-#''$"2?$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$

'"2;*+$)#$8#0$(.+$8(F#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$2.$72'0L#11#70&<#$(99-2(7"#'$02$-#+;7&.5$0"#$"#(*0"$

&.#I;(*&0&#'$0"#:$#M9#-&#.7#D$32?#<#-@$&1$0"&'$5-2;9$&'$.20$&+#.0&K#+$('$($9-&2-&0:$&.$0"#$[34A@$

0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$'"2;*+$+#82.'0-(0#$"2?$&0$&'$9-2<&+&.5$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$12-$

9(-0.#-'$02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$0"#$'0(0;'$21$2;0728#'$12-$*27(*$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#$)('#+$2.$&.+&7(02-'$';7"$('$0"#$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$0"#$H;)*&7$
3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$#07D

G$ H;)*&7$&.12-8(0&2.$2.$0"#$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$0"#$346$"('$'#0$02$';992-0$F#:$
9(-0.#-'$02$&89-2<#$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$!"&'$8(:$
)#$#.7289(''#+$):$0"#$[34A@$);0$?2;*+$.##+$02$)#$';1K7&#.0*:$+#*&.#(0#+$02$
+#82.'0-(0#$'9#7&K7$2)c#70&<#'$(.+$(70&2.$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$&.$
7"(.5&.5$0&8#'

!"#$9;-92'#$21$0"&'$-#92-0$&'$02$';992-0$&89*#8#.0(0&2.$21$0"#$"#(*0"$-#12-8'$02$&89-2<#$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5D

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>

!"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$?('$#'0()*&'"#+$):$0"#$
A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$0('F#+$?&0"$-#'92.+&.5$02$0"#$7"(**#.5#'$'#0$2;0$&.$A&-$
E(.$i#..#+:/'$-#92-0$9;)*&'"#+$&.$UVTV$ON#00&.5$&0$-&5"0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/D$

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$L$-#92-0$21$0"#$
*2.5L0#-8$72.+&0&2.'@$+&'()&*&0:$(.+$9(**&(0&<#$7(-#$';)L5-2;9$=UVTU>

X#92-0$+&'7;''&.5$0"#$7"(**#.5#'$(-2;.+$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$0"&'$5-2;9$21$7"&*+-#.D$

X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$L$&.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$
"#(*0"$2;0728#'$(.+$"2?$0"#:$8&5"0$)#$(++-#''#+$=UVTU>

X#92-0$7288&''&2.#+$):$0"#$72L7"(&-'$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$
P;0728#'$Q2-;8$1-28$Y(55&#$\0F&.'2.@$,"&*+-#./'$,288&''&2.#-$12-$B.5*(.+D

,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$(.+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$9-2+;7#+$&.$[;.#$UVTU$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Page 29



,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$,288&''&2.&.5$&.$0"#$
.#?$C3A$12-$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$'#00&.5$2;0$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8/'$<&'&2.$12-$
';77#''1;*$7288&''&2.&.5$12-$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$&.$0"#$.#?$C3AD

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$E89-2<&.5$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$
P;0728#'S$($':'0#8$?&+#$-#'92.'#

!"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$-#92-0$8(+#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'@$
(&8#+$(0$%3@$%1B$(.+$($?&+#$-(.5#$21$"#(*0"$':'0#8$2-5(.&'(0&2.'@$02$&89-2<#$"#(*0"$
2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$!"&'$+27;8#.0$72.0(&.'$0"#$':'0#8L?&+#$
-#'92.'#$'#00&.5$2;0$0"#$(70&2.$(*-#(+:$;.+#-0(F#.@$&.$9-25-#''$(.+$9*(..#+$&.$-#'92.'#$
02$0"#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'D

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTW>@$6#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#S$
P;-$H*#+5#

N2<#-.8#.0$-#'92.'#$02$0"#$$-#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$
Q2-;8@$'#00&.5$2;0$'"(-#+$(8)&0&2.'$(7-2''$0"#$C3A$02$&89-2<#$2;0728#'$(.+$'#-<&7#'$12-$
7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$

,2.0(70$\$1(8&*:$(.+$A0-(0#5&7$C#0?2-F$12-$,"&*+$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$&.$0"#$B('0$21$
B.5*(.+$=UVTU>@$H-&.7&9*#'$12-$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-&.5$)#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$
(.+$#M9#-&#.7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$'2$0"(0$0"#:$(-#$7289(-()*#$?&0"$0"#$
)#'0$&.$0"#$?2-*+

H2'0#-$'"2?&.5$f$9-&.7&9*#'$12-$7288&''&2.&.5$(.+$+#*&<#-&.5$)#00#-$"#(*0"$2;0728#'$(.+$
#M9#-&#.7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$+#<#*29#+$):$0"#$A0-(0#5&7$C#0?2-F$12-$,"&*+$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$&.$0"#$B('0$21$B.5*(.+D

%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"$=UVTV>@$!"#$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F$UVTTjTU

!"#$2;0728#'$(.+$&.+&7(02-'$?"&7"$8(F#$;9$0"#$K-'0$C3A$P;0728#'$Q-(8#?2-F@$12**2?&.5$
0"#$72.';*0(0&2.$!-(.'9(-#.7:$&.$2;0728#'$a$($1-(8#?2-F$12-$0"#$C3AD$

Page 30



Commitment 5: We promote early intervention and support 

smooth transitions between children and adult services for 

disabled children and young people 

!"#$ -#92-0$ 21$ 0"#$ ,"&*+-#.$ (.+$ R2;.5$ H#29*#/'$ 3#(*0"$ P;0728#'$ Q2-;8$ #89"('&'#+$ 0"#$

&892-0(.7#$21$#(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.$(.+$0-(.'&0&2.'$?&0"&.$($*&1#L72;-'#$(99-2(7"$02$-#+;7&.5$"#(*0"$

&.#I;(*&0&#'eD $!"&'$&'$9(-0&7;*(-*:$'&5.&K7(.0$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'@$?"2$210#.$'0-;55*#$02$2)0(&.$($+&(5.2'&'$(.+$(77#''$(99-29-&(0#$';992-0$(0$(.$#(-*:$

(5#$(.+$?"#.$0-(.'&0&2.&.5$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'@$?"&7"$(11#70'$ 0"#&-$2;0728#'$0"-2;5"2;0$0"#&-$

*&<#'D

E0$'"2;*+$)#$#89"('&'#+$0"(0$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$8(:$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'$

;9$02$0"#$(5#$21$UdD$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$72.'&+#-$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$

(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$1-28$VLUd$('$?#**$('$#.';-&.5$'8220"$0-(.'&0&2.'$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'D

e$ X#92-0$21$0"#$,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$9DWe

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$346$"#*9$*27(*$9(-0.#-'$02$;.+#-'0(.+$0"#$
<(*;#$21$#(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.

G$ !"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$(70&<&0&#'$21$0"#$346$#.';-#$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'@$(.+$9-&2-&0&'#$#.';-&.5$($92'&0&<#$#M9#-&#.7#$21$0-(.'&0&2.$12-$
+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

N-("(8$\**#.$YH$=UVTT>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.S$!"#$C#M0$A0#9'

\.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#92-0$02$N2<#-.8#.0@$?"&7"$(-5;#'$0"(0$8(.:$21$0"#$72'0*:$(.+$
+(8(5&.5$'27&(*$9-2)*#8'$12-$&.+&<&+;(*'$7(.$)#$#*&8&.(0#+$2-$-#+;7#+$):$5&<&.5$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$9(-#.0'$0"#$-&5"0$0:9#$21$#<&+#.7#$)('#+$9-25-(88#'$)#0?##.$VLTe$(.+$#'9#7&(**:$&.$$
0"#&-$#(-*&#'0$:#(-'D

N-("(8$\**#.$YH$=UVTT>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.S$A8(-0$E.<#'08#.0@$Y(''&<#$A(<&.5'$

N-("(8$\**#.$YH/'$'#72.+$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#92-0$02$0"#$N2<#-.8#.0$'#0'$2;0$"2?$#(-*:$
&.0#-<#.0&2.$9-25-(88#'$7(.$)#$9(&+$12-$?&0"&.$#M&'0&.5$-#'2;-7#'$(.+$):$(00-(70&.5$.#?$
.2.L52<#-.8#.0$82.#:D$

,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:@$i.2?*#+5#$3;)S$!-(.'&0&2.'

!"#$0-(.'&0&2.'$02$(+;*0"22+$";)$)-&.5'$025#0"#-$($-(.5#$21$-#'2;-7#'$(.+$#<&+#.7#$
-#*(0&.5$02$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$0-(.'&0&2.$9-27#''$&.02$0"#$(+;*0$?2-*+D$E0$&'$72.'0(.0*:$;9+(0#+$
?&0"$.#?$-#'2;-7#'D

Page 31



B(-*:$A;992-0

\$?(:$21$?2-F&.5@$;.+#-9&..#+$):$TV$9-&.7&9*#'$0"(0$(&8$02$&89-2<#$0"#$+#*&<#-:$
21'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'D$E0$#.()*#'$'#-<&7#'$02$
722-+&.(0#$0"#&-$(70&<&0:$)#00#-$(.+$9-2<&+#$1(8&*&#'$?&0"$($'&.5*#$92&.0$21$72.0(70$(.+$
72.0&.;&0:$0"-2;5"$F#:$?2-F&.5D

B(-*:$A;992-0$=UVTU>@$i#:$?2-F&.5S$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$(**$L$B<&+#.7#@$9-2<&'&2.@$
':'0#8'$(.+$'0-;70;-#'

\$';88(-:$21$0"#$F#:$#<&+#.7#$(.+$72.'&'0#.0$#*#8#.0'$21$($F#:$?2-F&.5$(99-2(7"D$E0$
9-#'#.0'$(.$(.(*:'&'$21$0"#$&89*&7(0&2.'$21$F#:$?2-F&.5$0"(0$7;0'$(7-2''$"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#$
(.+$#+;7(0&2.D

P1'0#+$=UVTW>@$N22+$9-(70&7#$-#'2;-7#$L$B(-*:$&.0#-<#.0&2.$0"-2;5"$($8;*0&L(5#.7:$
(99-2(7"S$A"#1K#*+$,&0:$,2;.7&*

A"#1K#*+$,&0:$,2;.7&*$"('$+#<#*29#+$($7-#(0&<#$(.+$&..2<(0&<#$(99-2(7"$(7-2''$0"#$
7"&*+-#./'$?2-F12-7#$):$&.0-2+;7&.5$($8;*0&L(5#.7:$9#-'9#70&<#$&.$9-2<&+&.5$9-#<#.0(0&<#$
'#-<&7#'$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$1(8&*&#'D

,bBV@$E89-2<&.5$0"#$?#**)#&.5$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$0"-2;5"$#(-*:$:#(-'$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$
=(5#$Vae>

!"&'$'#70&2.$72.0(&.'$0"#$12**2?&.5$-#'2;-7#'$&.$';992-0$21$&89-2<&.5$0"#$?#**)#&.5$21$
+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$0"-2;5"$#(-*:$:#(-'$&.0#-<#.0&2.'$=(5#$Vae>$9-&2-&0:S$*&.F'$02$2.*&.#$
022*']$F#:$2.*&.#$9;)*&7(0&2.'$1-28$,bBP$9(-0.#-'$(.+$20"#-$2-5(.&'(0&2.'D

E.'0&0;0#$21$H;)*&7$,(-#$=UVTU>@$B(-*:$E.0#-<#.0&2.$(.+$H-#<#.0&2.$?&0"$,"&*+-#.$(.+$
Q(8&*&#'S$N#00&.5$0"#$Y2'0$1-28$!#(8$(-2;.+$0"#$Q(8&*:$A:'0#8'

6-&#K.5$9(9#-$(-5;&.5$0"(0$#11#70&<#$*27(*$':'0#8'$02$&+#.0&1:$1(8&*&#'$?"2$?2;*+$
)#.#K0$1-28$(++&0&2.(*$';992-0$(.+$02$722-+&.(0#$';992-0$1-28$($-(.5#$21$(5#.7&#'$&'$('$
&892-0(.0$('$+#*&<#-&.5$#11#70&<#$'#-<&7#'D

!-(.'&0&2.$E.12-8(0&2.$C#0?2-F$=!EC>

\.$(**&(.7#$21$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$(.+$&.+&<&+;(*'$?"2$728#$025#0"#-$02$&89-2<#$0"#$#M9#-&#.7#$
21$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0"22+D$!EC$&'$($'2;-7#$21$&.12-8(0&2.$(.+$522+$
9-(70&7#$'0(.+(-+'$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$1(8&*&#'$(.+$9-21#''&2.(*'D

!EC$X#'2;-7#$_&)-(-:

R2;$7(.$;'#$0"#$'#(-7"$12-8$02$K.+$($-(.5#$21$-#'2;-7#'$0"(0$7(.$"#*9$:2;$02$&89-2<#$
:2;-$9-2<&'&2.$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#$&.$0-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0"22+D

H-#9(-&.5$12-$\+;*0"22+$=H1\>

\$U$:#(-$9-25-(88#$1;.+#+$):$0"#$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$('$9(-0$21$0"#$+#*&<#-:$
';992-0$12-$OA;992-0$(.+$('9&-(0&2.S$\$.#?$(99-2(7"$02$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.(*$.##+'$(.+$
+&'()&*&0:/$5-##.$9(9#-D$E0$9-2<&+#'$F.2?*#+5#$(.+$';992-0$02$(**$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(.+$0"#&-$
9(-0.#-'@$&.7*;+&.5$1(8&*&#'$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$'2$0"#:$7(.$#.';-#$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$
ABC$(.+$+&'()&*&0&#'$(7"&#<#$9(&+$?2-F@$&.+#9#.+#.0$*&<&.5@$522+$"#(*0"$(.+$7288;.&0:$
&.7*;'&2.$('$0"#:$82<#$&.02$(+;*0"22+D$

Page 32



H-#9(-&.5$12-$\+;*0"22+$=UVTU>@$H1\$-#'2;-7#$*&'0$

,-#(0#+$12-$0"#$H1\$O32?$(-#$:2;$+2&.5k/$#<#.0'$?"&7"$022F$9*(7#$&.$[;.#$(.+$[;*:@$
UVTUD$X#'2;-7#'$(-#$*&'0#+$;.+#-S$H(&+$#89*2:8#.0]$E.+#9#.+#.0$*&<&.5]$N22+$"#(*0"]$
,288;.&0:$&.7*;'&2.D

A*29#-@$HD@$6##7"(8@$[D@$,*(-F#@$AD@$Q-(.F*&.@$\D@$Y2-(.@$CD$(.+$,;'?2-0"@$_D$=UVTT>$
!-(.'&0&2.$02$(+;*0$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"2'#$?&0"$7289*#M$"#(*0"$
.##+'@$X#'#(-7"$42-F'@$UVTTLVU@$A27&(*$H2*&7:$X#'#(-7"$J.&0@$J.&<#-'&0:$21$R2-F@$R2-F

!"&'$-#'#(-7"$(&8#+$02$9-2<&+#$#<&+#.7#$21$?"(0$?2-F'$?#**$&.$+#<#*29&.5$(.+$
&89*#8#.0&.5$8;*0&L(5#.7:$722-+&.(0#+$0-(.'&0&2.$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"2'#$
?&0"$7289*#M$"#(*0"$.##+'$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'D$E0$(*'2$(''#''#+$0"#$72'0'$21$0"#$'#-<&7#'D

Page 33



04<<&)<*()$S>$!*$8419$8&)"$9*#$D,1)(*1%$)4$
%)1*(')"*($&()*'1,)&4($-*)8**($"*,.)"T$%4=&,.$=,1*$
,(/$*/:=,)&4($%*1A&=*%T$,(/$8&)"$%*1A&=*%$D14A&/*/$
-#$8&/*1$D,1)(*1%

%&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(77#''$'#-<&7#'$(7-2''$8;*0&9*#$(5#.7&#'@$(.+$0"#-#12-#$(-#$

+&'9-292-0&2.(0#*:$(11#70#+$):$922-$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$($

*(7F$21$722-+&.(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$8;'0$?2-F$?&0"$F#:$9(-0.#-'$

02$8##0$0"#$.##+'$21$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$&.7*;+&.5S$#+;7(0&2.$9-2<&+#-'$(.+$

'7"22*']$'(1#5;(-+&.5$)2(-+'@$*27(*$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$(--(.5#8#.0']$*#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$9(-0.#-'"&9$

)2(-+']$(.+$20"#-'D$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$8(F#$-#7288#.+(0&2.'$02$#.';-#$0"(0$

+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$#M9#-&#.7#$'#(8*#''$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$0"#$'#-<&7#'$0"#:$

(77#''D$

E.$9(-0&7;*(-@$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$'"2;*+$72.'&+#-$"2?$0"#:$#.5(5#$?&0"$#+;7(0&2.$

'#-<&7#'@$ &.7*;+&.5$ '7"22*'$ (.+$ 72**#5#'@$ )#7(;'#$ 21$ 0"#$ '&5.&K7(.7#$ 21$ c2&.#+$ ;9L?2-F&.5$

)#0?##.$"#(*0"@$#+;7(0&2.$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$02$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$2;0728#'D$

!2$9-2820#$&.0#5-(0#+$7288&''&2.&.5$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?&**$(*'2$.##+$02$72.'&+#-$

"2?$ '9#7&(*&'#+$ "#(*0"$ '#-<&7#'$ 7288&''&2.#+$ ):$ C3A$ B.5*(.+$ (-#$ c2&.#+$ ;9$ ?&0"$ *27(**:$

7288&''&2.#+$'#-<&7#'$(.+$#.';-#$0"#:$(-#$0(F#.$&.02$(772;.0$):$0"#&-$[AC\$(.+$[34AD

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

%;0:$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5S$

G$ )#0?##.$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$(.+$7288&''&2.#-'$21$'27&(*$7(-#$

'#-<&7#'$

G$ &.$9(-0&7;*(-$02$9-2<&+#$(+<&7#@$(''&'0(.7#$2-$20"#-$';992-0$12-$0"#$9;-92'#$21$

#.72;-(5&.5$;'#$21$`#M&)&*&0&#'$;.+#-$C3A$\70$UVVf$

H2?#-$02$&.7*;+#$&.$0"#$[34A$($'0(0#8#.0$21$<&#?'$2.$"2?$0"#$7288&''&2.&.5$21$
"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'@$(.+$?&+#-$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'@$72;*+$)#$82-#$
7*2'#*:$&.0#5-(0#+$a$&D#D$0"#$()&*&0:$12-$0"#$[34A$02$*22F$82-#$)-2(+*:$0"(.$"#(*0"$(.+$
'27&(*$7(-#$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$7*2'#-$&.0#5-(0&2.$21$7288&''&2.&.5$

Page 34



J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

!25#0"#-$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$=UVVg>@$Q(7&*&0(0&.5$&.0#5-(0#+$9-(70&7#$)#0?##.$
7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'$(.+$"#(*0"

!"&'$-#92-0$72.0(&.'$#M(89*#'$21$&..2<(0&<#$?2-F&.5$9-(70&7#$?"#-#$'#-<&7#'$(-#$&.0#5-(0#+$
?&0"$"#(*0"D

,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.$=UVVf>@$H(0"?(:'$02$';77#''S$N22+$9-(70&7#$5;&+#$12-$
7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'$&.$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$L$#<&+#.7#$1-28$
0"#$9(0"K.+#-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0'

!"&'$9-2c#70$-(.$1-28$\9-&*$UVVb$02$Y(-7"$UVVf$(.+$'#0$2;0$02$?2-F$(*2.5'&+#$0"#$
9(0"K.+#-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0'$&.$+#<#*29&.5$.#?$?(:'$21$?2-F&.5$(.+$02$7(90;-#$0"#$*#(-.&.5$
1-28$0"#&-$?2-FD$!"#$?2-F$72<#-#+S$'0-(05#&7$9*(..&.5]$7288&''&2.&.5$'#-<&7#'@$922*&.5$
);+5#0']$c2&.0$?2-F&.5$(.+$72L*27(0&2.]$(''#''8#.0$9-27#''$(.+$&.12-8(0&2.$'"(-&.5D

B('0$Y&+*(.+'@$B<#-:)2+:/'$*#(-.&.5$=UVTU>@$\'';-#+$'(1#5;(-+&.5S$NH$(.+$3#(*0"$
_#(+#-$#+&0&2.

X#'2;-7#$02$"#*9$7288&''&2.#-'$(.+$"#(*0"$9-2<&+#-'$-#('';-#$0"#8'#*<#'$0"#:$(-#$
+2&.5$#<#-:0"&.5$92''&)*#$02$#.';-#$0"(0$7"&*+-#.$?&0"&.$0"#$'#-<&7#'$12-$?"&7"$0"#:$(-#$
-#'92.'&)*#$(-#$('$'(1#$('$92''&)*#D

P1'0#+$=UVTU>@$E89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$):$&.0#5-(0&.5$#(-*:$';992-0$
(.+$9-#<#.0&2.$'#-<&7#'S$_;02.$62-2;5"$,2;.7&*

_;02./'$'#-<&7#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$)-&.5$025#0"#-$9-(70&7#$(7-2''$
"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#$(.+$#+;7(0&2.$'#-<&7#'@$(*2.5'&+#$&..2<(0&<#$'"2-0$)-#(F$(.+$#(-*:$
';992-0$9-2<&'&2.D$!"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$(.$#M0#.'&<#$-(.5#$21$&.0#5-(0#+$#(-*:$';992-0$(.+$
9-#<#.0&2.$'#-<&7#'$&'$&89-2<&.5$2;0728#'$12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$9-#<#.0&.5$'&0;(0&2.'$
+#0#-&2-(0&.5$'2$0"(0$7"&*+$9-20#70&2.$2-$*22F#+$(10#-$'#-<&7#'$)#728#$.#7#''(-:D

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S$

G$ %#0(&*'$21$0"#$?(:$&.$?"&7"$0"#$346$&'$&.12-8#+$):$0"2'#$?&0"$#M9#-0&'#$&.$
#+;7(0&2.@$(.+$7"&*+-#./'$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#

G$ %#0(&*'$21$0"#$?(:$0"#$346$#.5(5#'$?&0"$?&+#-$9(-0.#-'$';7"$('$"2;'&.5@$
0-(.'92-0@$'(1#5;(-+&.5$(.+$0"#$:2;0"$c;'0&7#$':'0#8

G$ %#0(&*'$21$'0#9'$0(F#.$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5$)#0?##.$"#(*0"@$'27&(*$7(-#@$
#+;7(0&2.$(.+$?&+#-$9(-0.#-'$&.$2-+#-$02$&89-2<#$0"#$'#-<&7#'$(77#''#+$):$+&'()*#+$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'

Page 35



04<<&)<*()$Q>$!*$D14A&/*$=4"*%&A*$'4A*1(,(=*$
,(/$.*,/*1%"&D$,=14%%$)"*$/&%,-.*/$="&./1*($,(/$
#4:('$D*4D.*2%$,'*(/,$-#$.&(9&('$*33*=)&A*.#$8&)"$
9*#$D,1)(*1%

!"#$-2*#$21$0"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$8;'0$)#$;.+#-'022+$&.$-#*(0&2.$02$.#?$(.+$#M&'0&.5$

9(-0.#-'"&9'@$ &.7*;+&.5S$ *27(*$ 7"&*+-#./'$ 0-;'0$ (--(.5#8#.0']$ *27(*$ '(1#5;(-+&.5$ 7"&*+-#./'$

)2(-+']$ *#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$ 9(-0.#-'"&9$ )2(-+']$ (.+$20"#-'D$\$ 7*#(-$ *27(*$ 1-(8#?2-F$2.$"2?$

0"#'#$9(-0.#-'"&9'$&.0#-(70$.##+'$02$)#$#'0()*&'"#+$02$(<2&+$0"#$+;9*&7(0&2.$21$#112-0$2-$#<#.

A0(0;02-:$+-&<#-'

*+',(-.'"/.0$1)',.2'%+.31(.4564

H2?#-$02$#.72;-(5#$7*2'#$?2-F&.5$=&.$-#*(0&2.$02$?&+#-$+#0#-8&.(.0'$21$"#(*0">S$

G$ )#0?##.$&0'#*1$(.+$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'$

G$ )#0?##.$7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"$'#-<&7#'$2-$'27&(*$7(-#$'#-<&7#'$(.+$
7288&''&2.#-'$21$"#(*0"L-#*(0#+$'#-<&7#'$

H2?#-$02$(992&.0$(++&0&2.(*$8#8)#-'$02$0"#$)2(-+$('$+##8#+$(99-29-&(0#$

H2?#-$12-$346$02$-#I;#'0$&.12-8(0&2.$12-$0"#$9;-92'#'$21$#.()*&.5$2-$(''&'0&.5$&0'$
9#-12-8(.7#$21$1;.70&2.'$1-28S$

G$ 0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$

G$ 7#-0(&.$8#8)#-'$2-$0"2'#$0"#:$-#9-#'#.0$?&0"$($+;0:$02$9-2<&+#$

2-),/%+".31(.455;

X#I;&-#8#.0$12-$#(7"$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$02$"(<#$($7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$)2(-+$?"&7"$8;'0$
&.7*;+#$-#9-#'#.0(0&<#'$21$0"#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0:$(.+$#(7"$21$0"#$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$O-#*#<(.0$
9(-0.#-'/

_27(*$'(1#5;(-+&.5$7"&*+-#./'$)2(-+'$9;0$2.$'0(0;02-:$1220&.5

2-),/%+".'"/.<'&),)+:.=),,.4564>6?.@1A%%+"(,B.)".C'%,)'&+"(D

=,*(;'#$Ud>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$9-2820#$0"#$&.0#5-(0&2.$21$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$
(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.D

=,*(;'#$Uf>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(.+$0"#&-$9(-0.#-$,,N'$8;'0$8(F#$(--(.5#8#.0'$12-$0"#$
c2&.0$7288&''&2.&.5$21$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#$?&0"$ABCD

=,*(;'#$Uh>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$F##9$;.+#-$-#<&#?$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.$9-2<&'&2.$(.+$
'27&(*$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABC$(.+$72.'&+#-$0"#$#M0#.0$
0"(0$&0$&'$';1K7&#.0$02$8##0$0"#&-$.##+'D

=,*(;'#$WV>$_27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$9;)*&'"$($_27(*$P11#-$72.0(&.&.5$&.12-8(0&2.$()2;0$
'#-<&7#'$(<(&*()*#$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABC@$&.7*;+&.5$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$
(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.D

Page 36



7289#0&.5$12-$-#'2;-7#'D

!"#$ [AC\'$(.+$ [34A$.##+$ 02$)#$(*&5.#+$?&0"$20"#-$(--(.5#8#.0'@$ ';7"$('S$ -#<&#?&.5$(.+$

7288&''&2.&.5$21$ABC$'#-<&7#'$<&($0"#$3&5"$C##+'$6*27Fg]T$'(1#5;(-+&.5$(--(.5#8#.0']$7"&*+$

92<#-0:$'0-(0#5&#']$(.+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$9*(.'$&1$0"#:$(-#$'0&**$;'#+D$

\++&0&2.(**:@$ 0"#$ ,"&*+-#.$ (.+$ Q(8&*&#'$ 6&**$ 7;--#.0*:$ &.$ H(-*&(8#.0$ 72.0(&.'$ 7*(;'#'$ 12-$

9-2820&.5$&.0#5-(0&2.$)#0?##.$'9#7&(*$#+;7(0&2.(*$9-2<&'&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$

=Ud>@$8(F&.5$ c2&.0L7288&''&2.&.5$(--(.5#8#.0'$=Uf>@$F##9&.5$#+;7(0&2.$(.+$7(-#$9-2<&'&2.$

;.+#-$-#<&#?$=Uh>@$(.+$9-2+;7&.5$($*27(*$211#-$=WV>@$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABCD$

!"#'#$.#?$+;0&#'$2.$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$(**$"(<#$($7*#(-$-#*#<(.7#$02$0"#$1;.70&2.'$21$0"#$3#(*0"$

(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$02$#.72;-(5#$&.0#5-(0#+$?2-F&.5@$9-2820#$7*2'#$?2-F&.5$(.+$;.+#-0(F#$

($[AC\$(.+$[34AD$!"&'$&'$9(-0&7;*(-*:$&892-0(.0$('$,,N'$?&**$)#$;.+#-$($.#?$+;0:$02$'#7;-#$

'9#7&K7$'#-<&7#'$&.$#+;7(0&2.@$"#(*0"$(.+$7(-#$9*(.'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$ABCTVD $

E.+&7(0&<#$-#5;*(0&2.'$(*'2$8(F#$7*#(-$0"(0$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'$8;'0$72.';*0$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$

62(-+'$?"#.$9-#9(-&.5$(.+$-#<&#?&.5$&0'$_27(*$P11#-TTD $

g$ A##$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$=UVTU>@$A7"22*$1;.+&.5$-#12-8$UVTWLTb@$99D$TfLUV

TV$ A##$%#9(-08#.0$12-$B+;7(0&2.$?#)'&0#$=UVTW>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$'9#7&(*$#+;7(L

0&2.(*$.##+'$02$)#.#K0$1-28$.#?$*#5(*$"#(*0"$+;0:

TT$ !"#$A9#7&(*$B+;7(0&2.(*$C##+'$=_27(*$P11#->$=B.5*(.+>$X#5;*(0&2.'$UVTbS$"009Sjj8#+&(D#+;7(L

0&2.D52<D;Fj(''#0'jK*#'j9+1j7j7*(;'#lUVWVlUV+-(10lUV-#5;*(0&2.'lUV'#.lUV*27(*lUV211#-D9+1

548$)4$<**)$#4:1$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()%

E.$2-+#-$02$1;*K*$0"&'$7288&08#.0@$?#$?2;*+$#M9#70$($346$02$)#$()*#$02$9-2<&+#$0"#$
12**2?&.5$#<&+#.7#S

G$ E.12-8(0&2.$2.$*&.F'$02$20"#-$*27(*$&.0#5-(0&2.$12-;8'$?"&7"$'#0$'0-(0#5&7$+&-#70&2.$
12-$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#./'$'#-<&7#'@$#D5D$0"#$*27(*$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$(--(.5#8#.0'@$0"#$
*27(*$'(1#5;(-+&.5$)2(-+@$0"#$*#(-.&.5$+&'()&*&0:$9(-0.#-'"&9$)2(-+@$0"#$'7"22*$
12-;8@$#07D

G$ B<&+#.7#$21$"2?$0"#$[AC\$(.+$[34A$&'$(*&5.#+$?&0"$20"#-$(--(.5#8#.0'@$';7"$
('S$-#<&#?&.5$(.+$7288&''&2.&.5$21$ABC$'#-<&7#'$<&($0"#$3&5"$C##+'$6*27F]$
'(1#5;(-+&.5$(--(.5#8#.0']$7"&*+$92<#-0:$'0-(0#5&#'@$#07D$

J*#$1*%4:1=*%$341$<**)&('$)"&%$0",1)*1$=4<<&)<*()

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'S$9;00&.5$92*&7&#'$&.02$9-(70&7#

%#<#*29#+$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$
9#29*#@$9(-0$21$0"#$C(0&2.(*$_#(-.&.5$C#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'@$02$5&<#$
346$8#8)#-'$'28#$&+#('$21$"2?$20"#-$)2(-+'$(-#$2-5(.&'&.5$0"#8'#*<#'$02$+#*&<#-$
722-+&.(0#+$'#-<&7#'$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D

Page 37



,"&*+-#.$(.+$R2;.5$H#29*#/'$3#(*0"$P;0728#'$Q2-;8$=UVTU>@$3#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$(.+$7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*&#'

H2'0#-$9-2+;7#+$&.$[;.#$UVTU$):$0"#$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$
(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#D$

B('02.@$,D]$3#0"#-&.502.@$YD@$A8&0"@$XD@$4(+#@$HD@$\'02.@$3D$(.+$N##@$ND$=UVTU>D$_27(*$
\;0"2-&0&#'/$\99-2(7"#'$02$,"&*+-#./'$!-;'0$\--(.5#8#.0'$=_N\$X#'#(-7"$X#92-0>

!"#$_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(0&2.$7288&''&2.#+$0"#$C(0&2.(*$Q2;.+(0&2.$12-$B+;7(0&2.(*$
X#'#(-7"$=CQBX>$02$&.<#'0&5(0#$*27(*$(;0"2-&0&#'/$(99-2(7"#'$02$0"#&-$7"&*+-#./'$0-;'0$
(--(.5#8#.0'$(.+$"2?$0"#:$(-#$1;*K**&.5$0"#&-$+;0:$02$9-2820#$7229#-(0&2.$?&0"$9(-0.#-'$
02$&89-2<#$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5D

Page 38



U*(*1,.$1*%4:1=*%

!"#$Y(-820$X#<&#?$=Q#)-;(-:$UVTV>@$Q(&-$A27&#0:@$3#(*0":$_&<#'S$\$A0-(0#5&7$X#<&#?$21$
3#(*0"$E.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+$H2'0LUVTV$

H-21#''2-$A&-$Y&7"(#*$Y(-820$?('$('F#+$):$0"#$0"#.$A#7-#0(-:$21$A0(0#$12-$3#(*0"$02$
7"(&-$(.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#<&#?$02$9-292'#$0"#$82'0$#11#70&<#$#<&+#.7#L)('#+$'0-(0#5&#'$12-$
-#+;7&.5$"#(*0"$&.#I;(*&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+D$

i#..#+:@$H-21$A&-$E(.$=A#90#8)#-$UVTV>$N#00&.5$&0$-&5"0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#S$
P<#-728&.5$7;*0;-(*$)(--&#-'$&.$0"#$C3A$'2$('$02$8##0$0"#&-$.##+'

\.$&.+#9#.+#.0$-#<&#?$21$'#-<&7#'$9-2<&+#+$):$0"#$C3A$02$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#@$
72.7#.0-(0&.5$2.$;.+#-'0(.+&.5$0"#$-2*#$21$7;*0;-#$&.$0"#$C3AD$E0$127;'#'$2.$(-#('$?"#-#$
0"#-#$(-#$7;*0;-(*$)(--&#-'$02$7"(.5#$(.+$&89-2<#8#.0$(.+$8(F#'$-#7288#.+(0&2.'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$L$X#'2;-7#'$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'

!"#$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$"('$)##.$?2-F&.5$?&0"$#(7"$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$*#(-.&.5$
'#0$&.$72**()2-(0&2.$?&0"$0"#$C3A$E.'0&0;0#$12-$E..2<(0&2.$(.+$E89-2<#8#.0@$%#9(-08#.0$
21$3#(*0"$(.+$_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(0&2.$02$9-2+;7#$9;)*&7(0&2.'$?"&7"$';88(-&'#$
0"#&-$F#:$92&.0'$21$*#(-.&.5$(.+$?"&7"$?&**$)#$'"(-#+$?&0"$20"#-$'"(+2?$"#(*0"$(.+$
?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'D

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$,"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$-#<&#?$
21$+27;8#.0'

6-&#K.5$';88(-&'&.5$0"#$F#:$92*&7:$+27;8#.0'$2.$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$"#(*0"$(.+$
?#**)#&.5$0"(0$"(<#$)##.$9;)*&'"#+$2<#-$0"#$*('0$0?2$:#(-'Dm

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$A;992-0$(.+$-#'2;-7#'$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+'

A;88(-:$21$0"#$';992-0$(<(&*()*#$02$'9-#(+$.#0?2-F&.5$(.+$*#(-.&.5$2992-0;.&0&#'$12-$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'

C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$=UVTU>@$C(0&2.(*$*#(-.&.5$.#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$)2(-+$
9;)*&7(0&2.'$UVTU

\$*&'0$21$9;)*&7(0&2.'$9-2+;7#+$):$!"#$C(0&2.(*$_#(-.&.5$C#0?2-F$12-$"#(*0"$(.+$?#**)#&.5$
)2(-+'$02$'"(-#$*#(-.&.5$(.+$';992-0$0"#$#'0()*&'"8#.0$21$?#**$1;.70&2.&.5$)2(-+'D

_27(*$N2<#-.8#.0$\''27&(02.$L$X#'2;-7#'$12-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$127;'&.5$2.$
7"&*+-#.@$:2;.5$9#29*#$(.+$1(8&*:$&'';#'

!"#$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$*#(-.&.5$'#0$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$*22F#+$(0$
0"#$&'';#'$&892-0(.0$02$0"#$+#<#*298#.0$21$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'D$!"#$*#(-.&.5$
'#0'$(-#$($9(-0$21$0"#$%#9(-08#.0$21$3#(*0"/'$+#<#*298#.0$(.+$';992-0$9-25-(88#$12-$
3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'$?"&7"$&'$';992-0#+$):$0"#$_N\@$C3A$,2.1#+#-(0&2.$(.+$
C3A$E.'0&0;0#D$C&.#$*#(-.&.5$'#0'$127;'#+$2.$($.;8)#-$21$0"#8#'$&.7*;+&.5$52<#-.(.7#@$
-#'2;-7#'$(.+$9;)*&7$#.5(5#8#.0D

N#00&.5$0"#$6#'0$P;0$21$R2;-$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$_#(+#-'"&9$%#<#*298#.0$
P11#-$L$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+$E.12-8(0&2.$X#'2;-7#

!"&'$+27;8#.0$)-&.5'$025#0"#-$&.12-8(0&2.$()2;0$9;)*&7(0&2.'$(.+$?#)'&0#'$?"&7"$'"2;*+$
)#$21$<(*;#$02$3#(*0"$(.+$4#**)#&.5$62(-+'D

Page 39



,"&*+$(.+$Y(0#-.&0:$3#(*0"$P)'#-<(02-:

,"&Y(0$?('$#'0()*&'"#+$&.$UVVe$('$($.(0&2.(*$9;)*&7$"#(*0"$2)'#-<(02-:$02$9-2<&+#$?&+#L
-(.5&.5@$(;0"2-&0(0&<#$+(0(@$#<&+#.7#$(.+$9-(70&7#$-#*(0#+$02$7"&*+-#./'@$:2;.5$9#29*#/'$
(.+$8(0#-.(*$"#(*0"D

C(0&2.(*$^2&7#'

!"#$.(0&2.(*$72(*&0&2.$21$"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#$7"(-&0&#'$&.$B.5*(.+D$!"#:$?2-F$025#0"#-$
02$'0-#.50"#.$0"#$<2&7#$21$9(0&#.0'@$'#-<&7#$;'#-'@$7(-#-'@$0"#&-$1(8&*&#'$(.+$0"#$<2*;.0(-:$
2-5(.&'(0&2.'$0"(0$?2-F$12-$0"#8D

X#5&2.(*$^2&7#'

A;992-0'$0"#$<2*;.0(-:$'#702-$02$';77#''1;**:$&.`;#.7#$*27(*$'0-(0#5&7$+#7&'&2.$8(F&.5$&.$
"#(*0"$(.+$'27&(*$7(-#D$!"&'$5-2;9$21$9(5#'$*&.F'$02$($<(-&#0:$21$-#'2;-7#'$02$';992-0$:2;$
+#<#*29$'0-(0#5&#'$02$&.`;#.7#$&.$:2;-$*27(*$(-#(D$$

!"#$,"&*+-#./'$!-;'0@$!(+?2-0"$&'$0"#$*#(+&.5$Ji$7"(-&0:$12-$

7"&*+-#.$?&0"$(7I;&-#+$)-(&.$&.c;-:@$8;*0&9*#$+&'()&*&0&#'$(.+$

7289*#M$"#(*0"$.##+'D$!"#$!-;'0/'$'#-<&7#'$&.7*;+#$0"#$Ji/'$

*(-5#'0$-#"()&*&0(0&2.$7#.0-#$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$

(7I;&-#+$)-(&.$&.c;-:@$.;-'&.5$7(-#$12-$0#7".2*25:L+#9#.+#.0$

7"&*+-#.@$(.+$#+;7(0&2.$12-$7"&*+-#.$(.+$:2;.5$9#29*#$?&0"$

9-212;.+$(.+$8;*0&9*#$*#(-.&.5$+&1K7;*0&#'$(.+$7289*#M$"#(*0"$

.##+'D

B<#-:$%&'()*#+$,"&*+$Y(00#-'$&'$0"#$.(0&2.(*$7(89(&5.$02$5#0$

-&5"0'$(.+$c;'0&7#$12-$#<#-:$+&'()*#+$7"&*+D$E0$&'$-;.$):$12;-$

*#(+&.5$2-5(.&'(0&2.'$?2-F&.5$?&0"$+&'()*#+$7"&*+-#.$(.+$0"#&-$

1(8&*&#'S$,2.0(70$($Q(8&*:@$,2;.7&*$12-$%&'()*#+$,"&*+-#.@$

Y#.7(9$(.+$0"#$A9#7&(*$B+;7(0&2.(*$,2.'2-0&;8D

E-4:)$L%

Page 40



!"#$%&'()*+"&(,'-.#)*+$,/',

!"#$%&'()*$'+,$-&((.&/+0$1"'#,2
!"#$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)$%&$'())%**#+$*($%),-(.%/0$

*"#$1234%*5$(6$4%6#$3/+$(2*'()#&$#7,#-%#/'#+$85$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$

63)%4%#&9$%/'42+%/0$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%*"$&,#'%34$#+2'3*%(/34$/##+&$3/+$"#34*"$

'(/+%*%(/&;$<#$:%44$:(-=$*(0#*"#-$%/$,3-*/#-&"%,$:%*"$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#9$

3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&$*($%),-(.#$2/%.#-&34$3/+$&,#'%34%&#+$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$#/&2-#$*"#5$-#'#%.#$*"#$

&2,,(-*$*"#5$/##+9$:"#/$*"#5$/##+$%*;$>%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%44$8#$&2,,(-*#+$

!"#$%&'&#!()*+#,"!)-!*.&#.-/#.0(*)1)#!()*+#.2,*+.!*"-2#.-/#!()#-))/2#"$#!()#$.3*&4#5*&&#6)#3)!#

&($*"3*$*"#5$'3/$4#3+$(-+%/3-5$4%.#&;

.1'2)#%"'3,%&,('4'1"#0'/5'6,-(,(-'%&"'7&#0%"08'/90'!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)'3,$$'

:0/;,)"'";,)"(<"'%&#%=

4;$$<#$"3.#$)"%#,$")'#()'#<<90#%"',(5/0>#%,/($(/$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$$

5(2/0$,#(,4#$4%.%/0$%/$(2-$3-#39$3/+$,-(.%+#$,284%'$%/6(-)3*%(/$(/$"(:$:#$,43/$$

*($)##*$*"#%-$/##+&

?;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&'),6#+$")'<&,$)0"('#()'1/9(-':"/:$"$3/+$*"#%-$$

,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+

@;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&':#0"(%'<#0"06$(6$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$

3/+$*"#%-$,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+

A;$$<#$&#*$<$"#0'6%0#%"-,<'/9%</>"6$6(-$(2-$,3-*/#-&$*($)##*$%/$-#43*%(/$*($+%&384#+$

'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&9$)(/%*(-$,-(0-#&&$*(:3-+&$3'"%#.%/0$$

*"#)$3/+$"(4+$#3'"$(*"#-$*($3''(2/*

B;$$<#$:0/>/%"'"#0$1',(%"0;"(%,/($3/+$&2,,(-*$6(-$&)((*"$*-3/&%*%(/&$8#*:##/$$

'"%4+-#/$3/+$3+24*$&#-.%'#&$6(-$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#

C;$$<#$:(-=$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&$*($6%0"(-%&"(',(%"-0#%,/($8#*:##/$"#34*"9$&('%34$'3-#$$

3/+$#+2'3*%(/$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$:%*"$&#-.%'#&$,-(.%+#+$85$:%+#-$,3-*/#-&

D;$$<#$,-(.%+#$</&"6,;"'-/;"0(#(<"$3/+$4#3+#-&"%,$3'-(&&$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$

5(2/0$,#(,4#A&$30#/+3$85$4%/=%/0$#66#'*%.#45$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&

0"1-'()%2                                                                                  !$/'

34#"/"4-5)*+$",)46)7'$&/+)$-()8'&&%'"-1)94$,(:

      

;+')*+"&(,'-.#);,<#/=);$(>4,/+$/2$'$+')/"+'($3*'#/)4$5#"6/,/+0$25&3/'(/2)$2&#6/3&2$
)"$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$4"7+0$5&"5(&$'3#"22$)*&$89:$;*&2&$2&#6/3&2$/+3(7,&$
#&*'./(/)')/"+$'+,$2755"#)$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$'3=7/#&,$.#'/+$/+>7#4?$&@5&#)$+7#2/+0$
3'#&$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$3"A5(&@$*&'()*$+&&,2?$'+,$#&2/,&+)/'($&,73')/"+$!"#$575/(2$
</)*$5#"!"7+,$'+,$A7()/5(&$(&'#+/+0$,/!!/37()/&2$')$;*&$B3*""($!"#$C#"!"7+,$
D,73')/"+:$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GHHIJH:$K/+,$"7)$A"#&$'."7)$)*&$<"#L$"!$
;*&$E*/(,#&+M2$;#72)?$;',<"#)*$'))>>>:/+'?+"&(,'-#/,<#/:4,1:<@

AB',2)!"#$%&'()*+"&()C$//',#)DA!*CE$/2$)*&$3'A5'/0+$)"$0&)$#/0*)2$'+,$>72)/3&$!"#$&6&#4$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,:$
N)$*'2$.&&+$2&)$75$.4$!"7#$(&',/+0$"#0'+/2')/"+2$<"#L/+0$</)*$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$)*&/#$!'A/(/&2$O$
E"+)'3)$'$K'A/(4?$)*&$E"7+3/($!"#$P/2'.(&,$E*/(,#&+?$Q&+3'5$'+,$)*&$B5&3/'($D,73')/"+'($E"+2"#)/7A:$
DPEQ$/2$*"2)&,$.4$)*&$R')/"+'($E*/(,#&+M2$17#&'7?$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GSHHGS:$ 

F4,)1<"($-?')4-)G''/"-1)/+'#')?4GG"/G'-/#=)H&'$#'),'$()/+')$??4GH$-2"-1)(4?<G'-/5)8+2)#"1-)/+')*+$,/',I)

Page 41



 

 
 
 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the development 

of Lewisham CCG’s five year commissioning strategy and to confirm 
that it is aligned with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
2. Recommendation/s 
 

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are invited to: 
 
2.1 Note the summary conclusions from the analysis of population needs, 

health outcomes, finance and benchmarking that will inform the 
strategy priorities.  

 
2.2 Note the strategy development that has been undertaken on the 

themes of healthy living for all, frail and vulnerable people, and long-
term conditions, including options for delivery models, and alignment 
with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy priorities.  

 
2.3 Note the plans for further development of the strategy and engagement 

with the public and stakeholders.   
 
3. Policy Context 
 
3.1 The development of the CCG’s strategy has included a ‘case for 

change’ exercise encompassing population health needs, health 
outcomes, public engagement feedback, financial analysis and 
benchmarking. 

 
3.2 The population health needs analysis was carried out by Lewisham 

Public Health based on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).   
 
3.3 One of the statutory responsibilities of the CCG is to ensure that health 

outcomes are improving for local people.  This is a key element of the 
NHS Mandate and will be part of the national assurance process for 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Report Title 
 

Lewisham CCG Strategy Update 

Contributors 
 

Head of Strategy & Organisational 
Development, NHS Lewisham Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Item No. 5 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 11th July 2013  

Agenda Item 4

Page 42



CCGs.  The NHS Health Outcomes Framework includes indicators 
covering five domains through which outcomes improvements can be 
assessed.   

 
3.4 At its meeting in May 2011 the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 

agreed the following nine key objectives which would achieve its aim to 
improve health, improve care and improve efficiency.  They were also 
presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board in its draft strategy on 
30th May 2013. 

 
• Increase the uptake of immunisation 
• Prevent the uptake of smoking among children and young people 
and reduce the numbers of people smoking 
• Reduce the harm caused by alcohol misuse 
• Promote healthy weight 
• Improve mental health and wellbeing 
• Improve sexual health 
• Delay and reduce the need for long-term care and support 
• Reduce the number of emergency admissions for people with 
chronic long-term conditions 
• Increase the number of people who survive colorectal, breast and 
lung cancers for 1 and 5 years 

 
4. Background   
 
4.1 Lewisham CCG is developing a new 5 year commissioning strategy to 

reflect its establishment as a new organisation and responsibilities for 
commissioning services for its population. The strategy will seek to 
address the health needs in Lewisham, financial challenges, the 
potential changes in the local provider landscape and will provide 
direction for service developments and action plans, informing the 
commissioning cycle and contracting processes. 

 
4.2 The development timetable includes a number of phases to ensure that 

a comprehensive, agreed strategy is in place for October 2013 for the 
start of the next contracting cycle for 2013/14. 

 
5. Population Health Needs Analysis 
 
5.1 The purpose of this analysis by Public Health is to provide an overview 

of those population-level factors impacting or likely to impact on the 
CCG strategy.  There are some particular challenges. 

 
5.2 While there are improvements in population health, there are still 

differences between different parts of the borough, for instance life 
expectancy at birth is rising (now on average 76.6 years for men and 
81.3 years for women) but for men in Lewisham Central and for women 
in Telegraph Hill it is significantly lower than the average.  The same is 
true for all cause mortality rates which have been falling in Lewisham 

Page 43



but in Lewisham Central is significantly higher than the Lewisham 
average. 

 
5.3 The Lewisham population is projected to grow across all age groups 

over the next five years.  For this period the largest percentage growth 
rate is in the 20-64 year old age group, and for the period 2013-28 the 
largest growth will be in the 65-90+ age group.  The increasing number 
of births expected to plateau towards the end of the decade. 

 
5.4 Cancer is now the main cause of death in Lewisham (33% of deaths), 

followed by circulatory disease (26%), respiratory disease (13%) and 
dementia (10%). 

5.5  With the increasing age of the population the number of dementia 
cases will rise; prevalence increases particularly in the population older 
than 65.   

 
5.6  The percentage of low birthweight babies has been falling but is still a 

significantly higher rate than the England average, but is now 
comparable to London as a whole. 

 
5.7  Prevalence of mental illness is high in Lewisham and there are 

inequalities within the borough: southern wards such as Downham, 
Bellingham and Whitefoot have higher needs for services than some 
other areas.  

 
6. Health Outcomes 
 
6.1  Health outcomes in Lewisham are generally improving and the 

assessment of outcomes indicators will help to determine the priorities 
for the CCG’s strategy and be used to monitor progress. 

 
6.2 Lewisham is worse than the England average for Potential Years of 

Life Lost, that is deaths from causes considered ‘amenable’ to health 
care are premature deaths that should not occur in the presence of 
timely and effective health care. (NHS Commissioning Board 
Outcomes Benchmarking Support Packs: CCG Level 2012) 

 
6.3 For Premature (under 75) mortality rates in cardiovascular disease, 

respiratory disease and cancer, Lewisham is worse than the England 
average.  For cancer Lewisham is also worse than other CCGs in its 
ONS Cluster. (NHS Commissioning Board Outcomes Benchmarking 
Support Packs: CCG Level 2012) 

 
6.4 Infant mortality measured infant deaths per 1,000 births shows that 

Lewisham is worse than the average for England.  (Lewisham Health 
Profile 2012 English Public Health Observatories) 

6.5 There is not currently a satisfactory indicator to measure success in 
mental health.  This will be a necessary consideration at the next 
stages of the strategy development.  Inequalities considerations should 

Page 44



run all the way through the CCG’s strategic plans though, again, there 
is no single measure that would capture improvements in all priority 
strategic areas. 

 
7. Financial Analysis & Benchmarking 
 
7.1 Financial scenario modelling has identified different savings 

requirements for the Quality Innovation Prevention and Productivity 
(QIPP) programme annually and over a five year period. 

7.2 The NHS programme budgeting benchmarking tool is a source of 
comparative information on NHS expenditure by healthcare condition. 
This data shows that compared to other CCGs in England Lewisham 
spends more on mental health, maternity, infectious diseases, and 
neonates.  Further analysis will be undertaken to explore the reasons 
for this. 

8. Strategic Themes 

8.1 The strategy will be developed further following the strategic themes of 
healthy living for all, frail and vulnerable people, and long-term 
conditions, taking into account and addressing the challenges identified 
under the case for change.  

8.2 A seminar for the CCG’s governing body on 6th June enabled 
discussion of particular elements of the strategic themes: through 
unplanned care, integrated care for people with complex needs and/or 
long term conditions, mental health, and maternity services.  Across all 
these areas, health outcomes, care (including quality and patient 
experience) and value will be improved where there is a proactive 
approach and early intervention, care is delivered in the most 
appropriate setting, and where there is closer and collaborative working 
between providers.  These principles will be carried forward into the 
next stage of the strategy’s development. 

 
8.3 Alignment with the Health & Wellbeing Strategy priorities will be 

supported through application in the integrated care delivery model 
below, potentially encompassing prevention and early intervention, a 
single point of access to services, a lifestyle hub resource for healthy 
living, and admission avoidance (stepped up care ) and discharge 
planning reducing unnecessary delay and effective rehabilitation  
(stepped down care). 

 
 

Page 45



 
 

8.4 Implementing systems to act early via planned care so avoiding 
unplanned care would improve care and outcomes for people with 
long-term conditions and the frail and vulnerable: 

Prevention 

e.g. immunisation, 
proactive primary 
care 

Management 

e.g. care plans (LTCs), integration, 
medical assessment unit, planned 
acute 

Emergency 

e.g A&E 

Planned Care Unplanned 
care 

 

8.5  For mental health a proposed model of delivery would include 
interventions that would see a proactive approach in patient care, 
particularly for repeat attenders, use of non-medical interventions 
supported by the voluntary sector and of in-reach work at acute beds, 
through health trainers, as an opportunity to engage with patients. 

 
8.6 Maternity services could see a ‘team around the mother’, comprising a 

whole, integrated team, including midwifery, primary care, health 
visiting, children’s centres and hospital services. 

 

9.  Next Steps 
 

9.1 The next stage in strategy development will consider further 
development of its aims and vision, and the interventions needed to 
transform local health care delivery.  These will focus on maternity for 

Page 46



the theme of healthy living for all, older people and end of life care for 
frail and vulnerable people, and on diabetes, respiratory/COPD, 
dementia, mental health (anxiety and depression) for long-term 
conditions. 

 
9.2 Engagement with CCG members, the public and stakeholders will be 

carried out during July and August. 
 
10. Financial implications 

 
10.1 A financial analysis has been included in the development of the 

strategy to date and will be incorporated into service planning and 
commissioning in line with CCG and joint budgets. 

 
11. Legal implications 

 
11.1 Members of the Board are reminded that under Section 195 Health and 

Social Care Act 2012, health and wellbeing boards are under a duty to 
encourage integrated working between the persons who arrange for 
health and social care services in the area.  This is recognised in the 
strategic priorities identified in the development process. 

 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications 

 
12.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 

report or its recommendations. 
 

13. Equalities Implications 
 

13.1 An Equality Analysis Assessment (EAA) will be carried out on the draft 
strategy, scheduled for August 2013.  This will identify the impact of the 
proposed strategic priorities and interventions on different sections of 
the community. 

  
14. Environmental Implications 

 
14.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report or its 

recommendations. 
 
Background Documents 
 
NHS Commissioning Board Outcomes Benchmarking Support Packs: CCG 
Level 2012  
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/ccg-pack-08l.pdf 
 
 
Lewisham Health Profile 2012 English Public Health Observatories 
http://www.apho.org.uk/resource/item.aspx?RID=117235 
 

Page 47



If there are any queries on this report please contact Charles Malcolm-Smith, 
Head of Strategy & Organisational Development, NHS Lewisham Clinical 
Commissioning Group, on 020-7206-3246, or by email at: charles.malcolm-
smith@nhs.net  
 

Page 48



  

 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1 In April 2013, the London Borough of Lewisham acquired additional mandated 
duties with respect to the control of infectious diseases (including healthcare 
associated infections) in the population.  
 
1.2 The purpose of this paper is to brief the Health and Wellbeing Board on key 
health protection issues and to advise on the most appropriate arrangements for 
health protection in Lewisham. The Board is asked to support the recommendations 
for action listed below. 

 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 

• Agree to the establishment of a Lewisham Health Protection Strategy Group, 
reporting to the Health and Wellbeing Board. The terms of reference should 
be consistent with the outline provided in appendix A and agreed by the group 

 

• Request that the first key task of the new group is to review health protection 
plans already in place locally and identify any additional plans needed. 

 

• Organise a workshop in September 2013 for stakeholders involved in health 
protection in Lewisham to ensure all understand their roles and 
responsibilities within the new arrangements.  Membership of the Health 
Protection Strategy group can be finalised at the workshop. 

 

• Support the development of a TB action plan for Lewisham based on 
recommendations in the TB JSNA (Autumn 2013). 

 

 

3. Policy context 

New health protection duties for local authorities 

3.1.Recently mandated health protection responsibilities for preventing, planning and 
responding to incidents require the local authority to oversee local issues and ensure 
arrangements are fit for purpose.   
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Title: An overview of Health Protection in Lewisham and proposed 
future arrangements 

 

Contributors: Dr Donal O Sullivan, Consultant in Public 
Health Medicine 
Brid Nicholson, Health Protection 
Programme Manager 

Item No 6 

Class: Part 1 Date: 16th June 2013 

Agenda Item 5

Page 49



  

3.2These are in addition to long standing health protection statutory functions largely 
centred around environmental health. 

 
3.3 Several organisations have a role to play, in particular Public Health England, 
Environmental Health Services and the local Public Health Department. The roles 
and responsibilities of these agencies are complex and sometimes overlap. 
 
3.4 Department of Health recommend that local authorities set up a health protection 
forum, chaired by the Director of Public Health, to provide an overview of health 
protection issues and ensure co-ordinated, close working arrangements between key 
agencies1,2. 
 
 
4. Background 

4.1 Health protection is a specialist area of public health consisting of 2 main 
elements – infectious disease (including healthcare associated infections) and non-
infectious environmental hazards. 
 
4.2 Lewisham faces some considerable health protection issues. This report briefly 
describes some of the key challenges in the borough and current plans to tackle 
them. 
 

Immunisations and vaccine preventable disease 

4.3 Uptake of childhood immunisations has been below the national target for some 
time and as a result, significant numbers of children have not been protected against 
potentially serious infections. 
 
4.4 However, over the past four years, the borough has seen a broadly sustained 
upward trend in the proportion of children immunised at all ages (figure 1). 

 
Figure 1 Percentage of vaccines in children under 5 in Lewisham 

Percentage Uptake of Vaccines in Children Under 5 in Lewisham

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

2010-11

Q1

2010-11

Q2

2010-11

Q3

2010-11

Q4

2011-12

Q1

2011-12

Q2

2011-12

Q3

2011-12

Q4

2012-13

Q1

2012-13

Q2

2012-13

Q3

2012-13

Q4

%

 

U
p

t

a

k

e

D3 at 1 year

D3 at 2 years

MMR1 at 2 years

Hib/MenC booster at 2 years

PVC booster at 2 years

D3 at 5 years

MMR1 at 5 years

D4 at 5 years

MMR2 at 5 years

 
 
4.5 Uptake of influenza immunisation also falls short of national targets.  Although 
Lewisham achieved national targets for influenza uptake in the elderly, uptake of 
influenza vaccine in other groups remains an issue.  
 

4.6 The Director of Public health chairs a bi-monthly immunisation strategy group 
meeting which provides a forum to develop local strategies and monitor progress. 
 

Page 50



  

4.7 Monthly immunisation working group meetings are held to review work streams 
and check progress against the local action plan. 
 
4.8 High numbers of confirmed measles cases in England were reported in the first  
3 months of 2013, reaching 587 by end of March, following a record annual high of 
almost 2,000 cases in 2012. 
 
4.9 Experts believe the rise in measles cases can be mostly attributed to the 
proportion of unprotected 10-16 year-olds who missed out on vaccination in the late 
1990s and early 2000s when concern around the discredited link between autism 
and the vaccine was widespread. 
 
4.10 As part of Department of Health measles catch-up programme, Lewisham is 
working in collaboration with other local authorities in South London to develop a 
programme to deliver immunisations to 10-16 year olds during August 2013. 
 

Sexually transmitted infections (including HIV) 

4.11 Sexual health is a local priority due to high rates of teenage pregnancy, 
abortion, sexually transmitted infections and HIV.  
 
4.12 One in 10 young people aged 15-24 have chlamydia infection, a further 1 in 50 
have gonorrhoea.  
 
4.16 The rate of HIV infection in Lewisham is 7.8 per 1,000 population with the 
average for London at 5.2 per 1,000. This is the 8th highest prevalence in the UK. In 
Lewisham around 60% of HIV infection is acquired through sex between men and 
women. 
 
4.17 HIV infection in Lewisham mainly affects the Black African community and men 
who have sex with men. Late diagnosis is more common in Black Africans and in 
particular Black African heterosexual men.  
 
4.18 In 2009 a London target was introduced to reduce very late diagnosis of HIV 
infection by 15% by 2010/11. At  baseline 31% of infections were diagnosed very 
late.  In 2011, 35% of HIV infections were diagnosed very late, although the 
proportion that were ‘late’ had reduced. Lewisham is rated ‘red’ against this target. 
 
4.19 A roll out of HIV testing in primary care is planned from 2013 onwards. 
Opportunities to increase HIV testing in other settings such as hospitals and in 
primary care is also a priority. 
 
 
Tuberculosis in Lewisham 

4.20 TB notification rates in South East London have remained fairly steady at 
around 30 annual notifications per 100,000 (the UK average at around 13 per 
100,000).   
 
 

4.21 However, notified cases increased in Lewisham in 2011 to 111 cases (40.5 per 
100,000), an increase on 73 cases in 2010 (27.4 per 100,000) and on the 85 case-
per-annum average for 2002-2010 (33.3 per 100,000). 
 

Page 51



  

4.22 The majority of cases occur in people of Black-African origin, more than double 
any other ethnic group, partly because people of Black-African origin make up a 
significant minority of the Lewisham population.  
 
4.23 Therefore although the largest numbers of TB registrations are in this group, the 
rate of TB cases is similarly high in people of Bangladeshi, Indian and Chinese origin 
(figure 4).   
 
Figure 4 Ethnicity of TB cases in Lewisham 2005-2011 

 
Source: Lewisham JSNA  

 

4.24 TB is closely associated with deprivation.  The majority of cases are in more 
deprived areas, with a concentration of cases in 2011 in the north of the borough 
(figure 5). 
 
Figure 5 – Map of 2011 TB registrations and deprivation 

 
 

 
4.25 The Public Health Department is currently undertaking a TB JSNA to measure 
current need, map service provision and identify any gaps.  A TB action plan, based 
on the recommendations in the JSNA will be developed by autumn 2013. 
 
 
5. Financial implications 
None 
 
 
6. Legal implications 
National policy recommends formation of local health protection forums as best 
practice1,2. 
 

Page 52



  

7. Crime and disorder implications 
None 
 
 
8. Equalities 
Health protection is an issue relevant to all working and living in the borough of 
Lewisham.  Issues such as TB and abortion disproportionately effect some of our 
minority groups and has higher rates in areas of higher deprivation. 
 
 
9. Environmental implications 
None 
 
 
10. Conclusion 

10.1 This report summarises the key health protection challenges in Lewisham, 
particularly in relation to vaccine preventable diseases, sexual health (including HIV) 
and tuberculosis and the work underway to tackle these issues. 
 
10.2 The board is asked to support the formation of a local health protection group, 
chaired by the Director of Public Health, to provide an overview of health protection 
issues and ensure co-ordinated, close working arrangements between key agencies 

are developed and maintained. 
 
 
 
 
Background documents 
 
1Department of Health (2012) Health protection and local government @ 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/199773/Health_Protection_in_Local_A
uthorities_Final.pdf 
 

2Health protection and local government @ 
http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=123d1fe3-eb7a-44a0-9083-3aa481c6cb5b&groupId=10171 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

If there are any queries on this report, please contact  

Dr Donal O'Sullivan 
Consultant in Public Health Medicine 
Public Health Lewisham 
Laurence House 
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Donal.osullivan@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 53



  

Appendix 1 

LEWISHAM HEALTH PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

Terms of Reference 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Aim 
Health protection seeks to prevent or reduce the harm caused by communicable 

diseases and minimise the health impact from environmental hazards such as 

chemicals and radiation. 

 

The Health Protection Committee will provide a forum to assess health protection 

risks to the local population.  Chaired by the Director of Public Health, the committee 

will act as the central group to view and monitor health protection activity.  It will 

provide a forum to discuss, prioritise and monitor issues and manage them where 

possible.  Issues will be escalated to the Health and Wellbeing Board as appropriate.  

 

The Health Protection Committee will provide assurance to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board in Lewisham about the adequacy of prevention, surveillance, planning and 

response with regard to health protection issues. 

 
The committee will work closely with other partners including the local Clinical 

Commissioning Group and environmental health colleagues to draw on existing 

experience and statutory powers. 

 

2.0 DUTIES  

1. 
Working with the London Borough of Lewisham and its NHS partners, monitor 
planning and co-ordinate activities to prevent, reduce or manage health protection 
risks to the local population  

2. 
Oversee the continual improvement and development of health protection in 
Lewisham 

3. 
Working with Public Health England and NHS England, act as the principle group 
convened in Lewisham to provide support in response to local health protection 
issues 

4. 
Receive regular reports from Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham’s Infection 
Control Committee 

5. Report regularly to the Lewisham Health and Wellbeing board 

6. 
Ensure Health Protection issues are raised in the appropriate internal and external 
forums 

7. 
Ensure clear lines of communication in planning and response with multi-agency 
partners in relation to health protection 

8. 
Ensure appropriate communication with all staff and the local population as 
necessary 

9. Report regularly to the local resilience forum 

10. Present annual report to the Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Page 54



  

3.0 ACCOUNTABILITY 

The Health Protection Committee will act as a sub-committee of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (see figure 1 below). The chair of the Health Protection Committee 

will raise issues with to the Board as appropriate. The Committee will present an 

annual report to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 

Figure 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.0 KEY RELATIONSHIPS 

 

Chair –           Director of Public Health, Lewisham 

Members – Consultant in Public Health Medicine, Public Health, Lewisham 

Health Protection Programme Lead, Lewisham 

Consultant in Communicable Disease Control, Public Health England, 

South East London 

  Lead Environmental Health Officer, Lewisham 

  Sexual Health Commissioner, Lewisham 

Quality Lead, Clinical Commissioning Group, Lewisham 

Primary Care Commissioner, NHS England 

Lewisham Lead, Sector Resilience Forum 

Communications Team, London Borough of Lewisham 

Strategy and Policy Unit, London Borough of Lewisham 

 

Other members will be co-opted to advise on different areas of work as appropriate.  

Lewisham Health 
Protection Committee 

 

Lewisham Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

 

Lambeth, Southwark and 
Lewisham Infection 
Control Committee 

 

Borough Resilience  
Forum 

 

Immunisation 

Strategy Group 

Page 55



  

5.0 REQUIRED FREQUENCY OF ATTENDANCE (BY MEMBERS) 

Members who are unable to attend meetings are required to nominate a 

representative to attend in their absence. 

 
 
 

6.0 REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS INTO THE COMMITTEE (FROM A 
SUBCOMMITTEE) 

1. To receive, on a quarterly basis, minutes and actions from the Lambeth, 

Southwark and Lewisham Infection Control Committee. 

2. Sign-off relevant actions from the LSL Infection Control Committee as appropriate. 

3. To receive, by exception, update reports on Health Protection issues. 

 
 
 

7.0 QUORUM RULES (REQUIREMENT FOR A QUORUM) 

50% of current membership. Vacant posts to be noted and excluded from quorum. 
 
 
 
 

8.0 FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS  

Quarterly 
 
 
 

9.0 PROCESS FOR MONITORING THE ADHERENCE TO THE RULES SET OUT 
IN THESE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Monitoring adherence to the rules set out in the terms of reference will be carried out 

periodically by the Chair of the Committee. 

 
 

10.0 REVIEW  

The terms of reference (including membership) of this committee will be reviewed on 
a yearly basis 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

 
 
 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 This report presents the Health and Wellbeing Board with a draft work 
programme (included as Appendix 1) for discussion and approval. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are invited to: 
 
• note the current draft of the work programme and consider 
whether amends or additions are necessary; 
• approve the work programme; 
• agree that the work programme will be considered as a standing 
item at each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
3. Policy context 
 
3.1 The activity of the Health and Wellbeing Board is focussed on 
delivering the strategic vision for Lewisham as established in Shaping 
our future – Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy and in 
Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
3.2 The work of the Board directly contributes to Shaping our future’s 
priority outcome that communities in Lewisham should be Healthy, 
active and enjoyable - where people can actively participate in 
maintaining and improving their health and wellbeing. 
 
4. Work programme 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Report Title 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 

Contributors 

 

Service Manager – Strategy, Directorate for 

Community Services  

Item No. 7 

Class 

 

Part 1  Date: 11th July 2013  

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



 
4.1 The work programme will be a key document for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. It will allow the Board to schedule activity, reports 
and presentations across the year. It will also provide members of the 
public and wider stakeholders with a clear picture of the Board’s 
planned activity. 
 
4.2 The draft work programme (see Appendix 1), includes some of the key 
items which the Board will need to consider over the course of 
2013/14. This includes the Board’s statutory functions in regard to the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
4.3 It is proposed that the work programme is reviewed as a standing item 
at each meeting of the Board. This will allow members of the Board to 
add, amend or reschedule items as necessary. 
 
4.4 In adding items to the work programme, the Board should specify the 
information and analysis required in the report, so that report authors 
are clear as to what is required. The Health and Wellbeing Board 
Agenda Planning Group may also propose items for inclusion on the 
work programme, and will seek approval for their inclusion from the 
Board. 
 
4.5 Upon agreement of the work programme, the Health and Wellbeing 
Agenda Planning group will commission the necessary reports and 
activities. 
 
5. Financial implications 
 
5.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations. 
 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 The Board’s statutory functions are broadly set out in paragraph 4.2. 
 
6.2 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 
duty (the equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine 
protected characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 
 
6.3 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 
 

Page 58



• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
and other conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 
• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 
 
6.4 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 
attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 
 
6.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued 
Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and 
attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the 
equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public 
authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as 
failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. 
The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact 
/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 
 
6.6 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty: 
 
1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making 
3. Engagement and the equality duty 
4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 
5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 
6.7 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties 
and who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to 
meet the duty, including steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more 
detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 
information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/publicsector- 

Page 59



equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 
 
6.8 Members of the Board are reminded that under Section 195 Health and 
Social Care Act 2012, health and wellbeing boards are under a duty to 
encourage integrated working between the persons who arrange for 
health and social care services in the area. 
 
7. Equalities implications 
7.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report or 
is recommendations. 
 
8. Crime and disorder implications 
8.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 
report or its recommendations. 
 
9. Environmental implications 
9.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising from this 
report or its recommendations. 
 
Background documents 
None 
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Edward Knowles, 
Service Manager – Strategy, Community Services, London Borough of 
Lewisham on 0208 314 9579 or by e-mail at 
edward.knowles@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 60



Health and Wellbeing Board - Agenda Planning 
 

 
last updated @ 03-07-13 

 
 

 

 

 
19 September 2013  Meeting Agenda Planning Report Deadline Agenda Publication 

    

Health and Wellbeing Board  tbc 30 August 2013 11 September 2013 
 

 

Report 1 
 

Evaluation of the Warm Homes Part 1 Lead 
Partner 

LBL Author Martin O’Brien 

 

 

 

Report 2 
 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author Mike Salter 

 

 

 

Report 3 
 

Draft CCG Commissioning Strategy Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 4 
 

TSA Update Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 5 
 

Integrated Health & Care Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 6 
 

Health & Wellbeing Strategy and Delivery Plan  Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

PH/LBL Author  

       

Report 7 
 

Area-based health initiatives: Evaluation of 

North Lewisham Health Improvement 

Programme and Bellingham Well London 

update  

 Lead 
Partner 

PH  Jane Miller 

       

Report 8 Public Health Budget update     Danny Ruta 

P
age 61



Report 9 Winterbourne Stock Take      
 

 

 

 

 

 
21 November 2013  Meeting Agenda Planning Report Deadline Agenda Publication 

    

Health and Wellbeing Board  tbc 1 November 2013  13 November 2013 
 

 

Report 1 
 

Reducing alcohol harm: update on progress  Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

PH Author  

 

 

 

Report 2 
 

Annual Public Health Report Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 3 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 4 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 5 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 6 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 ?January 2014  Meeting Agenda Planning Report Deadline Agenda Publication 

    

Health and Wellbeing Board  tbc ? 
November/December 

2013 

 ? 
November/December 

2013 
 

 

Report 1 
 

Overview of achievement on 3 public health 

priorities (smoking, alcohol and obesity)  
Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

PH Author  

 

 

 

P
age 62



Report 2 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 3 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 4 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 5 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

 

Report 6 
 

 Part 1  
or 2 

Lead 
Partner 

 Author  

 

 

P
age 63


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2013
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Disabled Children's Charter
	Why sign the Disabled Children's Charter Appendix 1
	Why sign the DCC Charter Appendix 2

	4 CCG Commissioning Strategy update
	5 Health Protection Committee
	7 Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme
	Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 110713 Appendix 1


